Cape Light Compact
Executive Committee &
Governing Board Meeting

DATE: Wednesday, Aprill13, 2016
LOCATION: Innovation Room, Open Cape Building
3195 Main Street, Barnstable County Complex
TIME: 11:30 - 4:30 p.m.
AGENDA

11:30 - 11:40 Public Comment

11:40 — 11:50 Approval of Minutes: CLC Board and Executive Committee

11:50 — 12:00 Treasurer's Report, Potential Vote to Ratify Treasurers’ Approval of Contracts

12:00 - 12:10 Chairman’s Report

12:10 - 12:20 Administrator’s Report: 1% Draft of FY17 Operating Budget, Update on
Administrative Services Agreement, M Downey out-of-state-travel request

12:20 - 12:30 Board Member Update (Reserved for Updates on Member Activities the Chair
Did Not Reasonably Anticipate Would be Discussed — No Voting)

Break for Working Lunch

1:00 Discussion and Potential Vote on Proposed Supplemental Budget Request for
FY16 Operating Fund

1:20 Energy Efficiency Update
1. Discussion and Potential Vote on Clarifying Commercial & Industrial

Programs — Policy for Non Profits, Margaret Song

1:40 Presentation and Discussion on Grid Modernization and Plans filed by
Massachusetts Distribution Companies (DPU 15-120and 15-122), and Overview
of Micro Grids, Austin Brandt and Kevin Galligan

2:40 Open Session Vote on entry into Executive Session pursuant to M.G.L. ¢. 30A

§21(a)(3) and Section 21(a)(10) to discuss:

1. Litigation strategy discussion regarding Electric Distribution Companies and
Interstate Natural Gas Pipeline Capacity Contracts, DPU 15-181, DPU 16-05
and DPU 16-07, which includes a discussion of confidential, competitively
sensitive or other proprietary information that if disclosed during open session
will adversely affect the Compact’s ability to conduct business in relation to
other entities making, selling or distributing electric power and energy; and

2. Litigation strategies related to Grid Modernization and Plans filed by
Massachusetts Distribution Companies (DPU 15-120and 15-122)

3. Confidential power supply contracts including trade secrets or confidential,
competitively-sensitive or other proprietary information if it is determined that
disclosure will adversely affect its ability to conduct business in relation to
other entities making, selling or distributing electric power and energy



Draft Minutes subject to correction, addition and Committee/Board Approval

Cape Light Compact
Governing Board and Executive Committee
Open Session Meeting Minutes
Wednesday, March 9, 2016

The Cape Light Compact Governing Board and Executive Committee met on Wednesday, March 9, 2016 in the
Innovation Room, Open Cape Building, Barnstable County Complex, 3195 Main Street, Barnstable MA 02630
at 2:00 p.m. J

PRESENT WERE: ABSENT WERE:

1. Joyce Fiynn, Chairwoman, Yarmouth 16. Michael Hebert, Aquinnah

2. Robert Schofield, Vice-Chair, Bourne 17. Tim Carroll, Chilmark

3. Peter Cocolis, Treasurer, Chatham 18. John Ally, Dukes County

4. Jack Yunits, Barnstable County until 3:25 p.m. 19. Paul Pimentel, Edgartown

5. Richard Toole, Member at Large, QOak Bluffs 20. Ronald Zweig, Secretary, Falmouth
6. David Anthony, Barnstable 21. Raymond Castillo, Orleans

7. Deane Keuch, Brewster 22, Tisbury — vacant

8. Brad Crowell, Dennis - by phone from 2:00-2:30 p.m. 23. Joseph Buteau, Truro

9. Frederick Fenlon, Eastham — by phone

10. Valerie Bell, Harwich

11. Thomas Mayo, Mashpee Members physically present: 12
12. Thomas Donegan, Provincetown — by phone Members participating by phone: 3

13. Joshua Peters, Sandwich
14. Richard Elkin, Wellfleet
15. Sue Hruby, W. Tisbury

LEGAL COUNSEL
Audrey Eidelman, Esq., BCK Law, PC

STAFF PRESENT:

Maggie Downey, Administrator

Meredith Miller, EM&V Manager

Margaret Song, Commercial & Industrial Program Manager
Austin Brandt, Power Supply Planner

Lindsay Henderson, Data Analyst & Marketing Coordinator
Don Mauritz, Commercial & Industrial Program Analyst
Karen Loura, Administrative Assistant

CONSULTANTS
Kevin Galligan, Galligan Energy Consulting, Inc.

Chr. Flynn called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. stating the Meeting Notice/Agenda had been duly posted on
the Cape Light Compact website in accordance with the Open Meeting Law. The Chair acknowledged remote
participation of B. Crowell, F. Fenlon and T. Donegan who were unable to attend due to other obligations.

Cape Light Compact Execntive Committee & Governing Board I
Varch 9. 2006 Meeting Minutcs



Draft Minutes subject to correction, addition and Committee/Board Approval

PuBLIC COMMENT
There were no members of the Public present.

CONSIDERATION OF MEETING MINUTES

The Board considered the February 10, 2016 Meeting Minutes. Several corrections were made. R. Schofield
moved the Board vote to accept the minutes as corrected, seconded by P. Cocolis and voted by roll call as
follows:

1. J. Yunits, Barnstable County Abs 9. T. Mayo, Mashpee Abs
2. D. Anthony, Barnstable Yes 10. R. Toole, Oak Bluffs Yes
3. D. Keuch, Brewster Yes 11. T. Donegan, Provincetown Abs
4. R. Schofield, Bourne Yes 12. J. Peters, Sandwich Yes
5. P. Cocolis, Chatham Yes 13. R. Elkin, Wellfleet Yes
6. B. Crowell, Dennis Abs 14. S. Hruby, West Tisbury Yes
7. F. Fenlon, Eastham Yes 15. J. Flynn, Yarmouth Yes
8. V. Bell, Harwich Yes

Motion carried in the affirmative (11-0-4).

TREASURER'S REPORT

P. Cocolis reviewed the Contract Summary sheet listing Contracts and Amendments he has approved which
have been forwarded to the County Commissioners for execution and requested the Board vote to ratify his
actions. There was discussion about Request for Proposals for Home Energy Services and the responses
received. M. Downey explained a limited number of bids were received and bid was awarded to most
advantageous proposal. Some had listed many “add-oris” which made it difficult to compare. She said there are
not many vendors who provide Home Energy Services. P. Cocolis moved the board vote to ratify the actions of
the Compact Treasurer relative to Compact contracts from February 16, 2016 through March 8, 2016, The
Compact Administrator is authorized and directed to take all actions necessary or appropriate to implement
this vote and to execute and deliver all documents as may be necessary or appropriate to implement this vote,
seconded by R. Elkin and voted by roll call as follows:

1. J. Yunits, Barnstable County Abs 9. T. Mayo, Mashpee Yes
2. D. Anthony, Barnstable Yes 10. R. Toole, Oak Bluffs Yes
3. D. Keuch, Brewster Yes 11. T. Donegan, Provincetown Yes
4. R. Schofield, Bourne Yes 12, J. Peters, Sandwich Yes
5. P. Cocolis, Chatham Yes 13. R. Elkin, Wellfleet Yes
6. B. Crowell, Dennis Yes 14. S. Hruby, West Tisbury Yes
7. F. Fenlon, Eastham Yes 15. J. Flynn, Yarmouth Yes
8. V. Bell, Harwich Yes

Motion carried in the affirmative (14-0-1).

P. Cocolis distributed and reviewed the Cape Light Compact’s FY 16 Operating Budget Report dated 3/9/16.
He said a supplemental budget request will be needed to cover overages in Salaries, Marketing and Retirement
at a future meeting.

Cape Light Compact Evecutive Commitice & Governing Board 5
Varch 9. 2016 Meeting Munnies



Draft Minutes subject to correction, addition and Committee/Board Approval

CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

Chr. Flynn introduced Jack Yunits, County Administrator. She said he has served as Mayor for Brockton and is
author of Urban Mayor: Making A City Work (Acanthus Publishing 2012). J. Yunits said he is fascinated by
what Cape Light Compact has done for Cape Cod.

Chr. Flynn introduced Donald Mauritz, newly hired Commercial/Industrial Program Analysis. D. Mauritz said
he has 20 year’s Energy Efficiency experience and comes from Berkley National Library University of
California. He is a native New Englander and is happy to be back.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

At 2:28 p.m. Chr. Flynn requested the Agenda be reordered to take up the Executive Session matters because a
quorum of the Governing Board will be lost at 3:00 pm. She said the purpose of the meeting is to discuss
litigation strategies and potential vote regarding Electric Distribution Companies and-Interstate Natural Gas
Pipeline Capacity Contracts, DPU 15-181, DPU 16-05 and DPU 16-07. She announced the Board would return
to Open Session at the conclusion of Executive Session. R. Schofield moved the Board vote to enter into
Executive Session pursuant to M.G.L. c. 304 §21(a)(3) to discuss litigation strategies and potential vote
regarding Electric Distribution Companies and Interstate Natural Gas' Pipeline Capacity Contracts, DPU [5-
181, DPU 16-05 and DPU 16-07, seconded by P. Cocolis and voted by roll call as follows:

1. J. Yunits, Barnstable County Yes 9. T-Mayo, Mashpee Yes
2. D. Anthony, Barnstable Yes 10.°R. Toole, Oak Bluffs Yes
3. D. Keuch, Brewster Yes 11, T. Donegan, Provincetown Yes
4. R. Schofield, Bourne Yes 12. J. Peters, Sandwich Yes
5. P. Cocolis, Chatham Yes 13. R. Elkin, Wellfleet Yes
6. B. Crowell, Dennis Yes 14. S. Hruby, West Tisbury Yes
7. F. Fenlon, Eastham Yes 15. J. Flynn, Yarmouth Yes
8. V. Bell, Harwich Yes

Motion carried in the affirmative (15-0-0).
At 3:24 p.m. the Board returned to Open Session
At 3:25 p.m. J. Yunits left the meeting
Without a Quorum, the Governing Board Meeting ended and the Executive Committee met.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
PRESENT WERE:
1. Joyce Flynn, Chairwoman, Yarmouth
2. Robert Schofield, Vice-Chair, Bourne
3. Peter Cocolis, Treasurer, Chatham
4. Richard Toole, Member at Large, Oak Bluffs - by phone = Members physically present: 3
Members participating by phone: 1

GOVERNING BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:
David Anthony, Barnstable

Deane Keuch, Brewster

Frederick Fenlon, Eastham — by phone
Valerie Bell, Harwich

Thomas Mayo, Mashpee

Thomas Donegan, Provincetown - by p

el e P P .

hone

Cape Light Compact Exccutive Conmmittee & Governing Board
Viarch 9, 2016 Meeting Minuies



Draft Minutes subject to correction, addition and Committee/Board Approval

Joshua Peters, Sandwich
Richard Elkin, Wellfleet
Sue Hruby, W. Tisbury

LEGAL COUNSEL
Audrey Eidelman, Esq., BCK Law, PC

CONSULTANTS:
Kevin Galligan, Galligan Energy Consulting, Inc.

STAFF PRESENT:

Maggie Downey, Administrator

Meredith Miller, EM&V Manager

Margaret Song, Commercial & Industrial Program Manager
Austin Brandt, Power Supply Planner

Lindsay Henderson, Data Analyst & Marketing Coordinator
Don Mauritz, Commercial & Industrial Program Analyst
Karen Loura, Administrative Assistant

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
o Marketing
M. Downey reviewed the marketing plan and the advertisements and schedule targeted to increase
Power Supply Program enrollment. She said a supplemental budget request for additional marketing
will be on the April meeting agenda for Board approval. There was discussion about meeting to review
the FY 17 Operating Budget and then present to the Board at the May meeting for a vote in June.,

e Administrative Services Agreement
M. Downey Reported the Administrative Services Agreement is being updated. She will meet with J.

Yunits and Counsel to finalize the draft. She said there are many updates made to reflect current
procedures and it will be presented at the April meeting,

e Power Supply
A. Brandt, Power Supply Planner will be speaking on gas pipelines at Cape Cod Community College on

March 24" at 6:30 p.m. M. Downey will forward the announcement to members. V. Bell is the contact.

e Brewster Finance Committee
M. Downey reported on an invitation from the Brewster Finance Committee to meet with Cape Light
Compact on April 6". She will send out details once meeting is confirmed.

ENERGY EFFICIENCY UPDATE
e Review of 2015 Preliminary Savings and Benefits
M. Miller provided a Power Point presentation entitled 2015 Preliminary EE Results.

¢ Bourne Middle School — tabled

Capoe Light Compact Evecitive Commintee & Governing Board 4
March 9, 20106 Meeting Minuics



Draft Minutes subject to correction, addition and Committee/Board Approval

o Clarifying Commercial & Industrial Programs — Policy for Non Profits M. Song provided a Power
Point presentation entitled Non-profit Update. There was discussion about the number of other
potential non-profit organizations. P. Cocolis suggested the topic be delayed for discussion by the
Governing Board. M. Downey suggested the Board have a working lunch meeting April.

GRID MODERNIZATION AND PLANS FILED BY MASSACHUSETTS DISTRIBUTION COMPANIES (DPU 15-120,15-
121 AND 15-122), AND OVERVIEW OF MICRO GRIDS

The Executive Committee agreed it is best to discuss these matters as a Governing Board. Copies of K.
Galligan’s Report titled Micro-grids An Overview - What, Why & Where and A. Brandt’s Power Point
Presentation entitled Grid Modernization Overview were distributed. M. Downey to re-distribute white paper.
By agreement, the topic was tabled to next meeting.

BOARD MEMBER UPDATE

R. Toole brought up Vineyard Power’s Community Empowerment Legislation. M. Downey said Cape Light
Compact has reviewed it and said this is a town by town decision. It is not a Cape Light Compact issue. This is
legislation sponsored by Rep. Madden to authorize cities and towns to enter into hedging for new renewable
energy contracts. There is no harm to Cape Light Compact, but it will be very confusing for ratepayers. The
legislation would enable town meetings to finance renewable energy projects.

J. Flynn announced this is Tom Mayo’s last meeting as he has accepted a position with the Town of Hingham.
T. Mayo said it was not an easy decision to make and encouraged the Compact that their work is important
affecting all of the taxpayers. Everyone wished him well.

ADJOURNMENT
At 4:09 p.m. R. Schofield moved the Executive Committee adjourn, seconded by P. Cocolis and voted
unanimously in favor.

Respectfully submitted,
Karen E. Loura
Administrative Assistant

Li1ST OF DOCUMENTS & EXHIBITS

Meeting Notice/Agenda

February 10, 2016 Meeting Minutes - draft

Summary of Contracts - February 16, 2016 - March 8, 2016
FY17 Operating Budget Report dated 3/9/16

2015 Preliminary EE Results

Non-profit Update

Micro-grids An Overview What, Why & Where

Grid Modernization Overview

Cape Light Compact Executive Committee & Governing Board
March 9, 2016 Meeting Muones



2016 Budgeted (Based on 2016 Planned) 2016 Actuals through Jan 2016 as Percent

Program PA Costs Program PA Costs PA Costs

PPLA Harketing Incentives STAT EMY i) PPEA | Marketing Incentives | STAT | EMy | - :nI ) .Iﬂn o
A'- Residential JIST13250,568 | § 477,634 ) $1 14,566,274 13" 4,559,848 11§ 769,940 |iSH217642,293 A -'Residen ...-_..... i e ijist L 8531718 - s S__Aquu_—:_«._ 119,483 _-_.m. J403%8 ] “0.6%
Al'- Resldenthl Whote House $ BIS400 1 $ 176447 |5 10548164 |5 3801241 |8 616018 )5 15957371 Al - Residential Whole House s 38961 5 6403l . s 453883 15591] 8 106,344 o.7%)
Ala - Residential New Construetion 3 23099 | s 6994 | 3 21481 | $ 81011 | $ 16370 | § 450,955 Ala « Residential New Construction 3 LI04 | § 181 1 § $ 1,186 | § 41418 2985 07%
Alb - Residential Muki-Family Retrolit 3 30342 | § 13932 | § 417,406 | § 23,702 | § 7174 |5 748,556 Alb - Residential Muld-Family Rezrofic H 1632 | $ 0l]s 3 L1348 688 | $ 4,955 0.7%
Alc - Residential Home Energy Services - Measures 3 656565 | § 918318 9634746 |5 1B6BTIS | $ 500378 | $  12.753.248 Alc - Residential Home Energr Services - Measures 3 3N gs 5.056 |8 3 36547 | 8 12741 | § 85,817 0.7%)
Ald « Resldential Home Energy Services - RCS $ 86091 | S 652913 - $ 497,128 % &1.004 ]S 1680762 Ald - Residential Home Energy Services - RCS 3 411418 6761 S ] 4792 | % 1544 1 8 11,126 0.7%)
Ale - Residental BehaviorfFoedck Progam | § (1303 )$  16I59(s 164331 |8  120675|s  iliez|s 32380 Ale - Residential Behavior/Feedback Pragram s si0]s A s €9 3]s 146l  osm
Al - Residentfil Produco s 217054 | 5 1390105 30456108 5061l s 153,829 | $  4.237564 A2 - Residéntial Froducts s 1037118 1704 ]'s - |s laoa2 | s 3893 |8 28,050 0.7%|
A2a - Residential Heatng & Cooling Equipment 3 a8l | s 2760018 1645008 190004 ] $ 42942 |5 1713854 AZa . Aesldentlal Heating & nnn__._—l;_.l $ 4244 | $ 6971 % 3 4.?2 $ 1593 | § 11.477 0.7%
A2b - Resld I C Products $ 19365 | § WIS 158,788 | $ 160454 | § 13724 | $ 378,068 Alb - Resldential © 3 9515 152 | § 5 1078 { § 47 |8 2,503 0.7%
Ale - Resldential Lighting $ 108876 | § 566618  1622312]%8 23160318 77,061 | § 2025632 Alc - Restdential Lighting 3 5202 |8 s | § $ 6081 | § 1953 | § 14,071 0.7%
AJ - Residential Harg-to-Measure $  Nel4ls 16177 | 970500 | $ 176568 | & - |s  L447.359 AJ - Residential Hard-to-Measure ] 2578 | % 42413 3 00 ]S - s 6,004 o4y
Ada - Residential Satewide Marketing $ - |3 12017 |5 - |3 - |s - 13 12,017 AJa - Residential 5 ide Marketing 3 - 13 = |8 3 - |s - 13 - 00%
Adb - Retidential § ide Datal 3 13253 | 8 - 3 - 3 - $ - 3 13,253 Alb - Resldentlal § ide Cant $ - 3 H 3 . 5 . 3 . 0.0%
Adc - Residential DOER A 3 145089 | $ - 3 - $ - 3 - 3 145,089 Alc - Residenual DOER A 5 - 3 - - 3 - 3 - 3 - 0.0%
Add - Residential EEAC Consull 3 . 3 - 3 - $ - $ - $ - Add - Residential EEAC Consultants S - 3 3 3 - $ - 3 - 0.0%
Ale - Residertial Sporsorships & Subscriptions $ 23.m71 s 10,127 | $ - $ - $ - $ 33,954 Ale - Retidential Spantorships & Subseriptions $ - 3 - H 3 3 $ - 0.0%
A3! - Residential HEAT Loan 3 5945 | $ 11532 | s 85000 | § 99.468 | § - 3 1,014.945 AJf - Residential HEAT Loan 3 2578 |8 42415 $ 300318 3 6,004 0.6%
A3f - Residential Workloree Develop 3 B 3 - 3 - 3 19,600 | $ - $ 19.600 AJg « Residential Workforce Develop 3 $ - 15 3 $ $ . 0.0%
Alh - Residential RRD and Demaonstration 3 $ 1500 (% 22500 [ $ 57500 |3 . 5 61,500 Adh - Residential RAD and Demonstration $ = $ - $ 3 E ] 5 - 00%
A3l - Resldential Education S - 3 25000 % - 3 = 3 $ 15,000 AJj = Residentlal Education 3 - 3 B k] - H - 3 - 3 - 0.0%
B -'Low:Income. S 268783 S 53,890 | % ._—._gm.u.._a. $ T18,29411% ; 1$74,040.498 2 i i i8722]{i8° 1§ 5 - 3 .__a ‘2,600 |15 3,699, -__u. 1&,141| _,P;i.—
|BL - Low-Income Whola House i |'s 194300 | § 29055 | $ 284587013 7183941 $ _uu.om_ S5 3 ouubua nw- = Low-Income VWhale House 3 s £ —alsT T 200l 36995 ClaML) T 04%)
Bla - Low-Ircome Single Family Retrofic $ 132659 | 8 22670 |8 19334508 £35.700 | s 106,558 | $ 2731037 Bla - Low-Income Single Family Retrofit 3 3 3 3 1,803 [ $ 256518 11,193 o.tn*
B1b - Low-Income Multi-Family Retrofit 3 50641 |8 6485 | § 912420 $ 182,593 | % 47,103 | § 1,207,242 Blb - Low-Income Muld:Family Retrofic $ H 5 = 3 79713 11345 4,948 0.4%
|2 - Low-Income Hard-to-Measure 3 774838 24736 | 3 - s = s - s 102,219 182 - Low-Income Hard-to-Measure : ] = Is = ls = ls - s ] & i 0.0%
B2a - Low-lrcome Statewide Marketing $ - |5 2EB4 | - 13 s - 13 22.684 Bla - Low-Income Statewide Marketing 3 5 ] - 15 - 13 s - 0.0%
B2b - Low-Income § vide Datal s 2684 | § - 1% - |3 3 - |3 2684 B2b - Low-Income Statewide Database ] s s - |8 3 3 . 0.0%
B2c - Low-Income DOER A H 19381 | $ - |8 . H s - | 29.381 B2c - Low-Income DOER A $ $ $ s = |3 $ - 0.0%
B2d - Low-Income Energy Affordability Network 1 6070 )s - 15 - |s s - |3 36,070 B2d - Low-Income Energy Affordability Network 3 3 3 3 3 3 - 0.0%
Bie - —his:nc..:o Sponsorships & Subscriptions H 9348 8 2052 | 8 H 3 - 3 11,400 Ble - Low-Income Sponsorships & m..w-n.__uco..u $ - ] = $ - 3 H - $ - Q0%
nm.\-.;..wm...n?_r Industrial. IjisT 830371 1% Hmww |15 ..mé_m {I$ HFZN—MM. 1503;985/ .5 um_au.uu._. C - Commercial & Industrial A& 35940l SOBLS. URISTIST 3;. $° ULsISisT 09570 E
CI'- CHl New Gonstruction. = E N I 070418 112175308 2410718 6048 1S _.muoml CI - C&l New Constructlon s RrAINE] 67| 8 009 |S 585318 152218 18,762 1%
Cla = C&I New Buildings & Major R 3 57TETY | S 5543 | $ 721350 [ $ 2405101 8 ;w 058 |8 1069334 Cla - CAl New Buildings & Majer Renovations s 100018 424 | 3 6007 | $ 1727 s %9 | S 14,130 1.3%]
Clb - C&l Inital Purchase & End of Useful Lile $ 330108 5161 ]S 494,160 | S 53597 | s uu 990 | § 09,938 CIb - C&{ Initia! Purchase & End of Useful Lile 3 711 |8 4113 - 3 11218 5118 4632 0.8%
C2 - CAl Rewroft s emsnills  iaani4]s esivaes s iaizoos|s  azsar|s ani34ssz]  |c2-CBIRewoft s 3ams 4419 6248]s  dean]s oo s s0ece ‘o8]
Cla - C& Existing Building Retrofit 4 174387 | $ 51,700 |5 1504305 ) 8§ 365059 | § 126733 | § 1222186 C2a « €& Existing Building Retrofic $ S040 | § 1279 { $ = 3 _ L2l | s u..mu_ s 24471 0.8%
C2h - C&| Small Busi $ 295760 | § 58326 |§ 42117548 674040 | 8 214939 18 S46481% C2b - C&l Small Business 5 15312 | § 216718 6248 | S 19040 | § 49511 % 47,750 0.9%
Clc - C&I Multifamily Retroli 3 4476 s 23505 | % 427406 | 231700 | § 39633 ] $ 753,420 C2c - CAl Multifamily Retrofit 3 11148 9918 = s 2626 |8 68118 5,721 0.8%
C2d - C&l Upitream Lighdng $ 9segls 8781 |$ 13858208 141,206 | § 66632 |5  1.E94.£27 C2d - C&l Upstream Lighting 3 4751 % 7213 $ 59051% 1538 12 856 0.8%)
C3 - C&| Hard-to-Measure $ 136877 | & 102,120 | 5 40000 | § Jooo|s = 15 348,9% C3 - C&I Hard-to-Measure 3 - |3 - |3 $ =] S-S - o.0%|
nu- Cal mBSS_Eo Marketing $ = $ 75299 | § - $ - 3 - $ 75299 Cla - C8 Statewide Marketing 3 3 3 3 $ 3 - 0.0%
Cib - C3) Statewide Database s 809 ]§ - $ . 3 3 - 3 8,90% Clb - C&l Satewide Daabase 3 3 $ 3 H S - 0.0%
Cic- CAI DOER A 3 97530 | % - 3 - $ 3 - $ 97,530 CIe - C&) DOER Assessment L 3 3 3 3 3 - 0.0%)
C1d - C&| EEAC Consul 3 - $ - 3 - 3 $ - $ - C3d - C& EEAC Consultants 3 3 3 s 3 $ - 0.0%
C3e - CAl Spamsorhips & Subscriptions ] 48 821 1% - s o - 13 37,259 e - CR! Sponsorships & Subscriptions ] $ $ $ 3 [] - 0.0%
CI - C&l Workforce Development $ - 3 000)|8 - 3 6000013 - 3 B0.000 CH - Cal Worklorce Development 3 3 3 $ 3 $ 0.9%
CJg - C&! RED and Demonstration $ - |3 - |$ 40,000 | § 10.000 | 8 - |5 50.000 C3 - C&1 RED and Demonstration 3 - 1% S k) = 3 $ 3 - 0.0%)
GRANDTOTAL = Glis! 23867,712|§ 787,061 |.§ 27,208,959, [E$ 7,054,275 |i$' 14275945 38,845,613 GRAND TOTAL |_.—“_M. _95,081.(1% 15,231 |1$ ALIAST 'S _nq.quq. u_.l;ua. 5 |_I_a 0.1




2015 Budgeted (Based on 2015 MTM)

2015 Actuals (January Through February 2016)

PA Costs
et [ I “BTAT
———+ — : - —
- PR R
1 ¥
CE 17} a0 ”%
— s 1! E E :
— S e [
T pﬂﬂ@ﬂLELﬁ
an E 1. 1|
KT 131 - - .
Aypresy [ z - i
o E. i =
= o AT B 1L T Y
[ -
1l M =
el T | 1
2 ST
= TEiili
[ s -

A
i
B

- L




04/11/2016 10:59 Barnstable County |p 1
mdowney | *EXPENDITURE TOTALS | glytdbud
FOR 2016 10

ORIGINAL APPROP REVISED BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES AVAILABLE BUDGET % USED

120 CAPE LIGHT COMPACT
8074 CAPE LIGHT COMPACT OPRERTG FUND
B074 5100 CLC OPERTG FD-SALARIES

.00 194,586.00 170,769.13 7,334.71 0.00 23,816.87 87.8%*
8074 5213 CLC OPERTG FD-TELEPHONES

.00 3,000.00 51.24 0.00 258.76 2,620.00 10.3%
8074 5220 CLC OPERTG FD-UTILITIES

0.00 4,500.00 2,982.18 .00 0.00 1,517.82 66.3%
8074 5233 CLC OPERTG FD-AUDIT/ACCIG SVCS

0.00 32,500.00 11,000.00 0.00 0.00 21,900.00 33.4%
8074 5215 CLC OPERTG FD-LEGAL SERVICES

0.00 299,375.00 115,815.09 0.00 0.00 183,559.91 38.7%
BO74 5238 CLC OPERTG FD-IT COUNTY SUPPRT

0.00 8,750.00 B,098.38 0.00 0.00 651.02 92.6%*
8074 5233 CLC OPERTG FD-CONTRACTUAL

0.00 65,000.00 35,925.98 0.00 19,889.75 9,184.27 45, 9%~
8074 5244 CLC OPERATG FD-PROFESS DEVELOP

0.00 5,000.00 1,160.00 0.00 ¢.00 3,B40.00 23.2%
8074 5270 CLC OPERATG FD-CUSTO/MAIN-CNTY

0.00 9,226.00 9,226.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100.0%+
8074 5281 CLC OPERTG FD-OUTSTATE TRAVEL

0.00 6,000.00 2,101,758 0.00 0.00 3,898.25% 35.0%
B074 5282 CLC OPERTG FD-IN STATE TRAVEL

o.o00 16,000.00 14,042.40 45.00 348.75 1,608.85 B0 .9%+
8074 5291 CLC OPERTG FD-ADVERTISING

0.00 3B8,561.00 24,664.70 0. 00 643.62 13,252.68 65.6%
8074 5293 CLC QPER-OQUTRCH/MARKETG CONTRC ’

0.00 76,520.75 71,612.75 .00 0.00 4,908.00 93.6%=
8074 5294 CLC OPERTG FD-FREIGHT/SHIPPG

0.00 250.00 35.14 0.00 0.00 214,86 14.1%
8074 5295 CLC OPERTG FD-PRINTG/COPYG

0.00 10,627.30 4,384.71 0.00 §,087.585 155.04 58, 5%«
8074 5293 CLC OPERTG-LED ST LIGHTS-CONTR

0.00 12,944.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 12,944.25 0y
BO74 5320 CLC OPERTG FD-FOOD SUPPLIES v

0.00 500.00 185,20 0.00 0.00 304.80 3%.0%
B074 5361 CLC OPERTG FD-POSTAGE

0.00 13,851.52 5,447.21 g.o0 6,518.03 1,B86.28 B85, 4%*
BO074 5399 CLC OPERTG FD-SUPPLIES

0.00 2,000.00 486.07 0.00 150.00 1,363,932 3l.8%



04/11/2016 10:59

|Barnstable County

|p 2

|glytdbud
AVAILABLE BUDGET % USED
5,958.086 80.1%
2,500.00 .0%
556.55 93.2%"
2,774.56 B4.1%"
10,000.00 0%
161.56 159.2%
=12,40%L.00 137.5%*
19,334.02 42.4%
B33.80 74.1%
0.00 100.0%*
IL17,414.38
A1T,414.38 B6.3%

mdowney | *EXPENDITURE TOTALS
FOR 2016 10
ORIGINAL APPROP REVISED BUDGET YTD EXPENDED MTD EXPENDED ENCUMBRANCES
B074 5421 CLC OPERTG FD-SPONSORSHIPS
0.00 30,000.00 24,041.94 576.94 0.00
8074 5429 CLC OPERTG FD-SUBSCRIPTIONS
0.00 2,500.00 0.00 0.00 ¢.00
8074 5433 CL OPERTG FD-PUBLIC OFFICL INS
.00 B,208.51 7,651.96 0.00 0.00
8074 5462 CLC OPERTG FD-BUILDING RENTAL
.00 17,500.00 14,725.44 o.00 0.00
BO74 5463 CLC OPERTG FD-EQUIP RENTAL
.00 10,000.00 o.00 0.00 0.00
8074 5499 CLC OPERTG FD-BANK FEES
.00 200.00 3g.44 0.00 0.00
BD74 59B1 CLC OPERTG FD-RETIREMENT
.00 33,080.00 45,481.00 0.00 0.00
B074 5983 CLC OPERTG FD-GRF INSUR
.00 33,557.00 14,222,598 528.13 0.00
8074 5984 CLC OPERTG FD-MEDICARE
.00 3,217.00 2,383.20 102.79 0.00
8074 5990 CLC OPERTG FD-FINANCE SUPPORT
.00 4,791.49 4,791.49 0.00 0.00
TOTAL EXPENSES
0.00 942,645.82 591,334.98 8,587.57 33,896.46
GRAND TOTAL
¢.00 942,645.82 591,334.98 8,587.57 33,896.46

*+ END OF REPORT -

Generated by Maggie Downey *+



e

Agqutnnal
Barnstable

Bamnstable
County

Bourne
Brewster
Chatham
Chilmark,

Dennis

Dukes
County

Eastham
Edgartown
Falmouth
Harwich
Maslipee
Oak Bluffs
Orfeans
Provincetown

Sandwich
Tisbury
Truro
Wellfleet
West Tisbury

Yarmouth

Agenda Action Request
Cape Light Compact
Meeting Date: 4/13/2016

Ratify Actions of Treasurer

REQUESTED BY: Peter Cocolis

Proposed Motion(s)

I move the Board vote to ratify the actions of the Compact Treasurer relative to Compact
contracts from March 9, 2016 through April 13, 2016.

The Compact Administrator is authorized and directed to take all actions necessary or

appropriate to implement this vote, and to execute and deliver all documents as may be
necessary or appropriate to implement this vote.

Additional Information

e This motion is consistent with the Board's March 11, 2015 vote to establish a
contract review process

Record of Board Action

Motion by: Second by: # Aye | # Nay | # Abstain Disposition




VPU33E S1/ET/y U0 9T0z/5/v 3 JYAH-JORZY UoRen|en] [Enusplsan]  GTAQE/S-STFI/T 00'C00'0SES 301 BUNsUo) WEGMEN

0LIVIIE T0¢/9T/E 3 198png S33IAI35 SpIepURYS | OT/TE/ZTOT/T/T 05 ¥9€023 IM BUnRIAAD 15€3 NNSIBVIT
'3 53PA7) O WIPUALY pu?

9T0Z/0E/E a10Z/9t/E uopduiax3 33 0N SanAsg rOIe B Ape)|  OT/LE/ZE9T/I/T 00SIZOTTS Tunaaudu3 asy
-(NI "SSBYY O} WAWPUBWIY PUZ

ST0Z/0E/E 9T0Z/91/€ x Saansas ApweTIW]  ST/LE/ZL-ST/T/T 00095961 15 Funsauidu a5y
JOPU3A PE3] O] WAWPUBWY IST

SToZ/at/e 9T0z/0T/E A VAH| SIS 000 525 veys 1a1ears 3
weansdn 'R 03 WaWpUAWY Y19

ddy auaiss) porag N/A paindoig asoding [TYET PeUO) Jounowy |  Juawpuawy SWeN Jopusp
{aifpasoddyly) | A gannadwon 40 unoWYy

5140303 °d




(s1ua2 /1) soyg Aieyoy ‘I Ld ‘VIIN ‘[e207] Sutar ‘ajqepunoy

{uoneauoyur Suno) Bwpuad papuny §243]) SAIAIIG AUNOT JO 04,67
{uoneunojul Lunoyy Suipuad papuny |249]) sa3ALS L1UN0D) JO 04T
(uoneuuojul Ayunoy) Suwpuad papuny [2a9]} SAIALIG LIUNOY) JO 26T
(uoneuuoju Aunoy) Supuad papuny [242]) s221A195 L1UN0Y) JO 08T

(uoneuuoju Auno)) Suipuad papunj [pad)) $931A435 LIUNOY) JO 2,67

(PO PUDITTI-S1 ‘181-€1) sBuIpasadcad Ndd

%01 ABSPUIT) ‘egcT 1SSV UNpY D7D %0L M133eq ‘94001 £[ddng 1omog

o0'coo'ors  §
(3oppy [euoneiadQ jo NoLs) 00°0r8°L80°T §
9T 6ERLLS §

00°1:8'098 S OOCEI'LIO'L S
00°000°S1 $
00°000°¢ S
00°000°01 $ 0000001 )
00°008°¢ $ ouLiZ'c )
00°000°0¢ $ o00I8t'sy %
00 E16°9¢ S o0Lss'ee  $
00°00¢ ) = $
00°000°01 § oo00001 §
00°000°C1 $ o0Levol §
00°000°r $ 00005t by
00°000'0€ §$ ooo000'0T §
00zTee'El $ 00CTe8el $
00°05T § 00052 S
00°195'8¢ § 00195'cS b
00°000'91 $ 0000091 $
00°000'9 $ 000009 S
00°008't § 00005y §
00926 $ 00926 Y
00°005"L1 § 00°00S°LI $
00°000't $ 00000F $
00°05L'8 § 00058 b
00°000° § 00°000°E S
00°000°T §$ 00°000C )
00°00% § 00005 g
00°000'0¢ § 00¢9Ee9  §
00°000's9 § 0099¢'08 §
00'6I10°CET § 00'SLELIE §
00°c00°0r $ 000000t §
00°000°9 s e S
00°00¢'t61  § 00°980'81T  §
LTAA pasododg 9] A

j3o0png sunpeiadQ pasodod J (L1070 3ung - 9107 "1 AINC) L10T 1¥a A WIS Pvdiio]) wjor ade))

13png 3upeaadg D) Imoqeg
aalasay IBipaans qa1
dwdogaasz(g |euoissajosg
Jeauay Juawdinby

BN PITA

ANy

ajucansuj Pjeay

533] Jueyg

uvansuf spERYIO Nqng
dunurg

suondiiasgng

{samqp wnersensy spomueyt sdpystosuodg
asusog

duddiys

£1ddns samod - Suisnpiaapy
3)u)s-u] [2ABL L

IXIS=JO-INQ) [PARL]

Luno) sanqun

L)uno)) duBUIIMEIA/ EIPOISTL)
Luno) yuay

jaoddng Hunoy szucury
oddng Ljunony J1
aucydaja],

saipddng

pooyq

Jdopeue) SugpeAPENG
[emaeuo))

jedar]

doupny

2A1353Y Aapjeg

CETAT N

(TE))]

LI/0E/9 J0 ST 3NUaAY J3ppy jeuopesad( L1A] 2I23f0rg
91/05/9 Jo st 23ueey puny a5y Siddng Jamo g 1aedwo)) wmdry ade) paprafoayg

9I/IE/E Jo su dueey pung 343353y Sddng Jamef psedwo)) gy sdeny



OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL AUTHORIZATION

Employee Name & Title: Margaret Downey

Department: Cape Light Compact

Date(s) of Travel: 5/30/16 - 6/2/16

Destination: Palo Alto, CA/Stamford University
Trip Purpose: US Dept of Energy - Women in Energy Symposium
Approximate Cost(s) of. Conference Registration Fee n/a
Hotel 500 plus taxes and fees
Transportation Approx $700 air, plus rental car for 3 days

Meals ($38/day with receipts) $114.00

Total Cost(s) Approximatlety:$1.500.00

Department Head Approval;

County Commissioners Approval:

Employee(s) shall report to the County Commissioners within 30 days of return to brief the
Commissioners on the Conference.



Aquinnah
Barnstable

Barnstable
County

Bourne
Brewster
Chatham
Chilmark,

Dennis

Dukes
County

Eastham
Edgartown
Falmouth
Harwich
Mashpee
Oak Bluffs
Orleans
Provincetown
Sandwich
Tisbury
Truro
Wellfleet
West Tisbury

Yarmouth

A ST A Py ST S e e e e e mr A 1

Agenda Action Request ape Light
Cape Light Compact Compact—]
Meeting Date: 4/13/16

Request for FY16 Supplemental Budget Increase — Compact
Operating Fund

REQUESTED BY: Peter Cocolis

Proposed Motion(s)

1) I'move the Board vote to approve the supplemental budget request to the
Compact’s FY16 operating budget as presented.

The Compact Administrator is authorized and directed to take all actions necessary or
appropriate to implement this vote, and to execute and deliver all documents as may
be necessary or appropriate to implement this vote.

The supplemental budget request is necessary to cover the Compact’s retirement
assessment, costs associated with radio and print ads for Compact power supply program,
and for a shortfall in salaries resulting from staff turn over.

Record of Board Action

Motion by: Second by: # Aye | # Nay | # Abstain Disposition |




00'CITLIO'T $

00°Lor' L S 009PYThe

00°000°S1

00°000°01

o'Lge

WIUSSISSY £ [ A4 [EMIDY 00°10+'TI $ 00°080°¢E
00°LSS'EE

00°000'01
00°L29'01
00'005'T
00°'000°0T
00°758°¢1
00°0sC
Spy opey 00°000°L1 $ 00195'8¢
00°000°91
00°000°9
00°005'y
00°9ZC°6
00°008°L1
00°000't
00°05L'8
00°000°€
00°000'T
007005
00°S9£'€9
(TT1-S1 Pue *90-9] *81-51) S12420P Ndq 10§ DA pue 1ySisu) 22nosay  00°996°17 $ 00000'c9
00'SLS'L1E
00°000°0F
saakoldwo g 10 yno Aed pue depiaao Jjeis £jddng somog  00°00S°€T $ 009856l
GTATISSnbaY 9TAS paAoiddy
THuRmIddng

RN I I R R R I Il I N

Jaapng supuvasdQ - nogolidea

1wipng Bupeiad 91 A4 371D PIsiAY

1283png Supwiadg H1o |vI0NgNg
sagasoy 1yBinaang qIn
[muay wawmdinby

asujpapy

JURWAIY

dueansu] Yiudp

sadupay

ajuvsnsuj sjuIYYO Ngnd
Bunurrg

suondiasqng

tang sopwpossy fpawsap sdyysiosuodg
aduoisog

suiddiyg

Ajddns samod - Swispaaapy
NW)S-U] 2ALLL

2)US-JO-INQ [IALI ],

ApenoD sanynn

L1uno)y dUBUIUILN/[BIPOISK))
Aunon yuay

1toddng £yunoy) aausuyg
jaoddng fyuney L]

auoydaja

sayddng

pooq

J0)aenuo) FunayisyIBINNO
[BEM)IBIHUOCD)

[e8ay

Japny

SaLIB[Eg

W

n..o_u_u< _uzo__ﬂ._ua_o JONOLS v g.cg.hwc._ $ 91 [/DE/9 J0 s® dauejeg pung dssasay Sddng Jamo,] peduioyy g3y adeny parssfory
OT'6ERLLY $ 91/1£/¢ JO 58 Jjuwjuy puny auasay Sjddng sano g edwoy iysi ade)y



]
}I_guinnaﬁ
Barnstable

Barnstable
County

Bourne
Brewster
Chatham
Chilmark,

Dennis

Dukes
County

Eastham
Edgartown
Falmouth
Harwich
Mashpee
Oak Bluffs
Orfeans
Provincetown
Sandwich
Tisbury
Truro
Wellfleet
West Tisbury

Yarmouth

Agenda Action Request
Cape Light Compact
Meeting Date: 4/13/2016

Ratify Actions of Treasurer

REQUESTED BY: Maggie Downey

Proposed Motion(s)

I move the Board vote to approve application of budget criteria to each site rather than
the entire organization.

The Compact Administrator is authorized and directed to take all actions necessary or

appropriate to implement this vote, and to execute and deliver all documents as may be
necessary or appropriate to implement this vote.

Additional Information

e See attached presentation

s Application: for example, If there are multiple sites (not multiple buildings), then
the non-profit criteria of the budget would be assigned per site.

Record of Board Action

Motion by: Second by: # Aye | #Nay | # Abstain Disposition




916080 — DNOS LIUVOUVIN

31vAddN 1IHOd4d-NON

=]




DWOIUI-MO| m /
[eD0s u

[eanano m

SLIHOUYd"-NON dILSTHILINI 4O AdODILVD




poso.addy m  polsosoium

SULDIO spn|g Ao Yanow| 4 ojqeasuieg QRWIYD Aangsi). UMOIDDUIACIY weyey
o
.
| I | |
gl
[4 [4 [4
: ;

SE

S1IHOYdd"NON d3IAOYddY ANV A3 LSTHILNI

=l




‘a5 4ad se pauz)sse aq pjnom 128pnq ay3 Jo BB Woud-uou Byl usyl (sBupjing ajdiajnw Jou)
sa1is ajdninw a.e syl 1 *3|dWEXS 40} ‘0§ "UOMIEZIULE.IO BINUS Y3 UBLR JSYIL SIS UDES 01 LLIBIID 128pnq jJo uonedidde aaosdde o3 210

"s21s a|dizjnw pue 3198png 13334 01 Ajod

19W Uadq SBY BURLD AP =
S93IS JUBIdYIP 7 ING 3193pNng W97 =
adea149y pue £103s1Y '9JUBIDS ‘S1UB 01 SS3IIE ISLAUIUI TBY] SIIIAIDS [BANJ|NS) -
2l|qnd a1 Jo siaqaw ||e 03 uddo Buk 1By 53IIALDS [BIDOG -
JUBWIdO[PADP JILLIOUOID JO IUBWIIIULAPE PUE UOIOWOIY -
‘Bummol|of 3 Jo auo apiaoad o1 asodind jeuoneziuedi
40f ot 7$ upby3 ssaf Jo anuaasy unpsad( jpnuuY papLIsaIUf)
:Bumoyjoy sy sdes agdenBue| Juauuny)

woud-uou jeamnT) =

J1OATVILINILOd = NOISIDIA ADITOd




MASSACHUSETTS DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES GRID MODERNIZATION

PLAN PROCEEDINGS
AND

CAPE LIGHT COMPACT PARTICIPATION

BY STEPHAN WOLLENBURG

BACKGROUND AND

Starting in 2012, the Commonwealth of Massachusetts began the process of directly addressing how the
state would modernize its electrical grid after a century of relative technological stagnation through a
series of Department of Public Utilities {(DPU or Department) orders. The Department stated that “the
Department launches a new energy future for Massachusetts. The modern electric system we envision
will be cleaner, more efficient and reliable, and will empower customers to manage and reduce their

energy costs.”! Order, D.P.U. 12-76-B at 1 (June 12, 2014). Given the
extent, cost, and longevity of the proposed investments, decisions made
as a part of this process will have significant economic, environmental,
and equity impacts that are likely to persist for decades. Furthermore,
potential changes in how electric distribution companies (EDCs) are
regulated and incentivized and further changes in power supply, energy
efficiency, and related services will have comparably enduring effects.

D.P.U. 12-76-B required the EDCs to file grid modernization plans
{(GMPs) proposing how that EDC intends to make “measurable progress”
towards the Department’s grid modernization objectives. This
document is intended to address the EDCs’ GMPs filed with the DPU,
with a focus on issues most likely to be of particular importance to the
Cape Light Compact (Compact) and the residents and businesses on
Cape Cod and Martha’s Vineyard. As an organization with interests and
responsibilities pertaining to power supply, energy efficiency, and
electricity delivery in general, the implementation of GMPs will have an
enormous impact on the Compact’s future work. Specifically, this
document provides an overview of the DPU-stipulated GMP
requirements, a summary of Eversource’s GMP, and possible areas of

! That order also stated, “the modern electric system will build on the Patrick
Administration’s progress towards our clean energy goals by maximizing the
integration of solar, wind and other local and renewable sources of power.
Because customers will have new tools and information to enable them to use
less electricity when prices spike, the electric system will be appropriately
sized and less expensive.” D.P.U. 12-76-B Order at 1 {emphasis added).

Frequently
used acronyms

* AMF — advanced metering

functionality

AMI - advanced metering
infrastructure

DG ~ distributed generation

DPU — Department of Public
Utilities

EDC — Electric distribution
company

EE — energy efficiency

GMP — grid modernization
plan

PV — photovoltaic

STIP —short-term
investment plan

® TVR - time-varying rate

F'-'I|'t j 1



focus by the Compact in the proceedings. It also raises specific questions that the Compact is most
interested in receiving feedback on from its constituents. While this document focuses on the DPU’s
grid modernization proceedings that are currently underway, the Compact and its partners on the Cape
and Vineyard may pursue issues raised as a part of this process through other venues, which might
include legislation or other policy initiatives.

Questions prompted by the GMPs filed by the three EDCs and the grid modernization process in general
are ripe for discussion amongst residents and businesses on the Cape and Vineyard. While consensus is
unlikely, such discussions will help inform the Compact’s positions and potential participation in the grid
modernization proceedings. The grid modernization process in the Commonwealth is likely to be an
extended one, and positions of the parties, including the Compact, are likely to evolve over time as new
information is presented. As such, this document and the ensuing discussions should be considered part
of an ongoing dialogue, not a static one.

In addition to deciding upon which grid modernization issues it will focus, the Compact must consider
how it will participate in the EDCs’ proceedings. The EDCs’ GMPs have been docketed, but the
Department has not yet issued an Order of Notice and Notice of Filing, Public Hearing and Procedural
Conference, which will set forth a deadline for filing to intervene. These dockets are full adjudicatory
proceedings, meaning that the parties granted intervenor status may conduct discovery, sponsor
testimony, participate in hearings (including witness cross examination), and file briefs. The Compact
will need to decide in which EDC dockets it will seek to intervene and how best to participate in the
proceeding(s) to accomplish its objectives, especially in light of the novel and precedent-setting issues at
stake.

PROCEDURAL BACKGR OUND REQUIREMENTS

On October 2, 2012, in D.P.U. 12-76-A, the DPU opened on its own motion an Investigation into the
Modernization of the Electric Grid (D.P.U. 12-76-A Order). This order was followed by a number of
different regulatory proceedings and directives, including:

e Anextensive working group process to gather stakeholder feedback on grid modernization

e D.P.U.12-76-B Order requiring each distribution company to develop a GMP

e An order laying out the specific business case filing requirements to be included in the GMPs
(D.P.U. 12-76-C)

* An investigation laying out the Department’s framework for time-varying rates (TVR) (D.P.U. 14-
04-C Order)

* Aninvestigation of electric vehicles and electric vehicle charging (D.P.U. 13-182)

On August 19, 2015, Eversource, National Grid, and Unitil filed their GMPs, docketed as 15-122, 15-120,
and 15-121 respectively.

GMP OBIECTIVES

Inits D.P.U. 12-76-B order, the DPU outlined four objectives of grid modernization, all of which must be

GRID MODERNIZATION Page | 2




addressed in the filed GMPs. Specifically, the four goals were:

1. Reducing the effects of outages — namely by achieving the Department’s service quality goals
(D.P.U. 12-120), reducing the number and duration of outages, and generally increasing the
resilience of the distribution system.

2. Optimizing demand, including reducing system and customer costs — the DPU called for a
modernized grid that will reduce the system-wide peak, and use price signals and technology to
allow customers to shift their consumption to less expensive periods.

3. Integrating distributed resources - this goal, which contemplates resources including electric
vehicles, renewables, microgrids, and storage, is intended to help increase the resilience of the
system and help the Commonwealth achieve its climate goals.

4. Improving workforce and asset management — the DPU acknowledged that progress towards
this goal, which would increase operational efficiency and, presumably, reduce costs, would
likely be a byproduct of working towards the first three.

In addition to the Department’s four stated objectives, it specifically cited advanced metering
functionality (AMF} as a critical component of all grid modernization efforts. In fact, the Department
made it a requirement that the utilities achieve AMF functionality within five years of the approval of
their respective GMPs. Any EDC that proposed a longer timeframe was required to provide a business
case that demonstrated that the longer timeframe was a superior approach. The Department referred
tc AMF, as opposed to advanced metering infrastructure (AMI], as it wanted to emphasize the
importance of achieving specific functionalities, instead of specifying a technology, such as AMI.?
D.P.U. 12-76-B Order at 14. In other words, the DPU chose to adopt a technology-neutral approach,
leaving it to the utilities to determine the most cost-effective way to implement AMF. In D.P.U. 12-76-
B, AMF is defined as including four elements:

1. The collection of customers’ interval usage data, in near real time, usable for settlement in the
ISO New England (ISO-NE} energy and ancillary services markets; *

2. Automated outage and restoration notification;

3. Two-way communication between customers and the electric distribution company; and

4. With a customer’s permission, communication with and control of household appliances

2 AMI is defined by the Department of Energy as “an integrated system of smart meters, communications
networks, and data management systems that enables two-way communication between utilities and customers.”
(https://www.smartgrid.gov/recovery_act/deployment_status/sdgp_ami_systems.html) While AMI satisfies all of
the DPU’s requirements for AMF, the distinction between the two was intended to encourage the EDCs to pursue
other technologies that might achieve the same functions. As an example, this might have included using a
customer's internet connection for communications, instead of relying upon a new, dedicated communications
infrastructure installed by the utility.

¥150-New England is the independent, not-for-profit organization that is responsible for planning and operating
New England's electric transmission system and wholesale electricity markets. In this context, “settlement” refers
to the ability of a customer to be billed based on their actual, real-time electricity consumption, as opposed to
being billed based on an approximation of when their consumption occurred over the course of a given month.

GRID MODERNIZATION Page | 3



GMP-REQUIRED ELEMENTS

GMPs, as defined by the DPU, are ten-year strategic planning documents, outlining how the EDC will
meet the four objectives and achieve AMF. EDCs, in their GMPs, were required to include a number of
elements:

o Afive-year short-term investment plan (STIP). The STIP covers all capital investments in the first
five years of the company’s plan, including a comprehensive business case which must address
scope, schedule, unquantifiable and quantifiable costs and benefits, progress towards achieving
other legislative and regulatory goals, etc.

e A marketing, education, and outreach (MEO) plan

o  Aresearch, development, and deployment (RD&D) plan

» Proposed infrastructure metrics (did the EDC install what it said it would?) and performance
metrics (has progress towards objectives such as improved service quality and distributed
generation interconnection been made?)

e Proposed procedures that would allow competitive suppliers access to certain customer usage
data without compromising customer confidentiality (D.P.U. 12-76-8 at 34-36)

In the Department’s TVR investigation (D.P.U. 14-04), an interim order (D.P.U. 14-04-B) included a
framework for the implementation of TVR which the Department later adopted without any
maodifications in its D.P.U. 14-04-C Order. This framework required that the EDCs offer two basic service
options — one (the default option) with off-peak, on-peak, and critical peak pricing {CPP) periods, and
the other a flat rate with the ability of customers to earn a peak time rebate (PTR) by reducing
consumption during high demand periods. The framework also addressed issues relating to consumer
education? and access of competitive suppliers to data for the purpose of developing and offering their
own TVRs. EDCs are required to develop GMPs/STIPs that are consistent with the Department’s
framework.

PRE-AUTHORIZED SPENDING, TARGETED COST RECOVERY

The Department allowed preferential treatment for certain spending as an incentive for the EDCs to
develop and implement their GMPs. D.P.U. 12-76-B Order at 3-5. Specifically, approved STIP capital
investments are eligible for pre-authorization, meaning the Department will not revisit whether the
investments should have been undertaken, though it may review the prudency of the implementation of
those investments. Furthermore, certain investments are eligible for targeted cost-recovery through a
capital expenditure tracking mechanism {capex tracker), which allows EDCs to expedite the recovery of
these investments. Only incremental capital investments that are made within the five-year STIP are
eligible. Furthermore, investments may only be claimed through the capex tracker if the EDC’s STIP

4 The Department stated, “Because customer education, marketing, and outreach are crucial to enabling the
successful implementation of grid modernization, companies’ marketing and outreach should begin early in the
grid modernization process.” {D.P.U. 12-76-8 Order at 2)



addresses AMF.®

EVERSOURCE GRID MOD PLAN

Eversource takes a very conservative approach to grid modernization, emphasizing incremental
investments. Eversource’s GMP also focuses on grid-facing investments, consistently downplaying the
potential benefits of giving consumers greater access to information and pricing transparency.
Eversource references studies that seem to indicate a lack of interest and ability for consumers to
meaningfully engage with a more interactive grid. Eversource’s conservative approach is also
highlighted by its resistance to rolling out AMF on an opt-out basis. Eversource concludes that AM| is the
most cost-effective way to achieve AMF as does National Grid, but Eversource fears that opt-out AMF
will not produce net benefits. Significantly, Eversource claims that it will be able to achieve 80% of the
benefits of TVR at 15% of the cost by using an opt-in approach instead of an opt-out one {Eversource
GMP, Exh. Eversource-PMC-1 at 16}, although it presents almost no details regarding the supporting
analysis. As discussed below, Eversource does not address other potential non-TVR related benefits of
AMI that National Grid includes in its business case. Critically, unlike National Grid, Eversource assigns
all of its proposed cyber security costs to TVR, as it claims that its current cyber security practices are
already sufficient for all of the other grid mod investments (Eversource GMP at 212-13). This claim
seems suspect, especially since it conveniently bolsters Eversource’s position that TVR is not particularly
cost-effective.

Throughout, Eversource states that it has already been piloting most of the contemplated technologies,
referencing its involvement in Electric Power Research Institute studies, TVR/AMI pilots in NSTAR and
Connecticut Light & Power territory, Department of Energy funding for advanced distribution
automation {(ADA), etc. Eversource also provides significantly more detail on its planned grid-facing
distribution upgrades than does National Grid. The diversity of Eversource’s territory (especially
Western Massachusetts Electric Company versus Boston Electric Company) makes it particularly
challenging to evaluate some of its proposed investments. As an example, it proposes upgrades that will
increase the reliability of its secondary network distribution systems, a type of highly-redundant electric
distribution design used primarily in urban areas. Eversource acknowledges that these systems are
already extremely reliable, but says that outages on these secondary network systems can be
catastrophic and difficuit to remedy quickly (Eversource GMP at 36). It is challenging to compare this to
proposed investments that will reduce the impact of or prevent outages that occur more frequently but
affect a smaller number of customers and are easier to rectify.®

5 The Department’s language does not address whether the STIP must achieve universal AMF on an opt-out basis.
See D.P.U. 12-76-B Order at 13-15, 20. However, given the Department’s adopted TVR framework that requires
TVR be the default option for all basic service customers, one could reasonably assume its intent is that AMF be
universally implemented, not just universally available.

% In its filing, Eversource uses dollars per customer minute saved (CMS) as one of the metrics for comparing

reliability investments. Eversource GMP at 25. This metric compares the cost of an investment to the resulting
reduction in the total number of minutes affected customers go without electricity. Still, there are many other
metrics for evaluating service quality that may also be considered, such as those currently used to evaluate the

GRID MODERNIZATION FPage

LN




As noted above, possibly the most egregious error in Eversource’s GMP is the inclusion of investments in
tree-trimming, double-pole removal, stray voltage testing, manhole inspections, and other similar core
utility duties. Eversource argues that because these measures increase resiliency and reliability, they will
achieve some of the DPU’s objectives, and a modern grid does little good if it is not functioning. Still,
these activities are clearly not appropriate for inclusion in the GMP and to be recovered through a capex
tracker.

Eversource’s GMP appears to fail to satisfy the Department’s GMP requirements in a number of ways.
Namely, Eversource’s GMP:

s Does not provide for 100% AMF - as discussed in footnote 2, it is not clear whether the DPU
requires universal AMF, or if an opt-in approach is acceptable. However, it would seem that the
Department’s presumption is that AMF will be universal, given the fact that the TVR framework
makes TVR a default option.

» Does not adopt the DPU’s TVR framework — Eversource did not make TVR a default option for all
consumers, and the design of its opt-in TVRs do not conform to the DPU's framework.

* Does not clearly address providing data to third party suppliers, or the ability of suppliers to
develop TVR products (D.P.U. 14-04-C Order).

* Requires consumers to pay additional costs in order to get real-time access data. Thus, it is
unclear if Eversource’s proposed opt-in AMF meets the Department’s definition of AMF.

e Appears to seek recovery of operations and maintenance costs through the capex tracker,
although the DPU specifies that only copital investments are eligible.

e Incorrectly proposes to recover some costs — tree trimming, double-pole removal, stray voltage
testing, manhole inspections, etc. — as incremental grid modernization investments, when they
are actually core utility functions.

¢ Does not mention energy efficiency or how its proposed GMP is consistent with the DPU policy
framework that stated it “will benefit all customers by reducing peak energy and capacity
market costs; increasing system efficiencies and support the distribution system by reducing
peak demand; and providing appropriate incentives for distributed resources such as
photovoltaic generation, electricity storage, and electric vehicles, as well as targeted energy
efficiency and demand response.” (D.P.U. 14-04-C QOrder at 3).7

DISCUSSION — POTENTIAL AREAS OF FOCUS FOR THE COMPACT

EDCs’ service quality (see D.P.U. 12-120 for additional detail}. Further complicating the issue, different customers
place very different values on electric service quality and reliability.

7 Eversource includes in its GMP the cost of a $7 million investment in a proposed New Bedford Energy Storage
project with little explanation of consistency with the framework or allocation of cost to which customers.
Eversource GMP at 56-59.

GR!D MODERNIZATION Page <]




-

-

The Eversource GMP includes an enormous amount of information. The DPU’s review process will be
exhaustive, and will involve a number of ather parties, including the Attorney General, environmental
advocates, renewable energy interests, low-income ratepayer advocates, and various trade groups.
Furthermore, National Grid and Unitil raise issues that, if supported by the DPU, could have significant
statewide impacts. This might make it critical for the Compact to participate in the dockets reviewing
National Grid’s and Unitil's GMPs as well. As such, the Compact’s resources will be best and most
effectively spent by focusing on a discrete number of issues which the Compact has distinct insight into

Key intervention points

GMP must include a process for
providing data to competitive suppliers
and other vendors

TVR should not include fees that will
deter customers from participating

TVR design should include pricing during
peak periods that increases over time,
allowing customers to adjust their
consumption behaviar, or select
alternative supply options

Eversource must consider alternatives to
requiring that customers commit to a full
year of TVR

Eversource needs to justify allocating ol
incremental cyber security costs to
TVR/AMI implementation

Encourage DPU to require EDCs to
estimate transmission and distribution
savings associated with demand
reductions from TVR, DG, and other grid
mod investments

Ensure geographical equity in reliability
costs and benefits

Address National Grid’s proposal to
introduce fees for standalone DG

GRID MODERNIZATION

or that are likely to have particular impacts on Cape and
Vineyard customers. This section serves two purposes:
first, it highlights some of the areas that the Compact
should address in possible participation in the grid
modernization proceedings and other initiatives. Second,
it highlights issues on which the Compact is still clarifying
its position. The Compact is particularly interested in
feedback on these questions.

EVERSOURCE AMI AND TVR PROPOSAL

Everscurce’s AM| and TVR proposal diverges significantly
from the direction provided by the DPU and the ideal of
grid modernization in general. Not only does Eversource
propose an opt-in approach, its proposal includes
specifics that seem designed to discourage customer
participation in TVRs. Forinstance, Eversource’s proposal
would require those that opt-in to TVR to pay some sort
of fee, though details on the structure of these fees are
scant. Eversource’s TVR structure would also include
prohibitively high rates during peak periods, and would
require that customers that opt into TVRs to stay with
them for at least a year. Eversource claims that these
design elements stem from a desire to properly allocate
costs and benefits, but they may represent unnecessary
impediments that do not properly account for all of the
benefits of TVR participation. Taken together, they may
result in a sort of self-fulfilling prophecy — unattractive
TVRs that will experience low participation levels and be
rendered ineffective as a result. If Cape and Vineyard
ratepayers want to have the ability to take advantage of
TVRs at a reasonable cost, the Compact should plan to
question some of these obstructive TVR and AMI
elements, and push for changes that would be more likely
to result in successful TVRs with high levels of



participation and significant benefits.

Eversource’s failure to address how competitive suppliers and other vendors could access customer data
with customer permission is another area of great concern to the Compact. The DPU’s vision for TVRs
includes a vibrant competitive marketplace with a variety of TVRs designed to benefit different types of
customers. Eversource’s GMP, on the other hand, seems to envision customers only being able to
access AMI meters if they opt into one of Eversource’s TVR offerings. National Grid’s GMP not only
speaks to the process for sharing data with third parties, it also assumes customer participation in TVR's
offered by competitive suppliers {National Grid GMP, Attachment 14 at 4). If the Compact's power
supply customers want to take advantage of TVR options in the future, it is critical that the Compact
secure changes to Eversource’s GMP that will allow customers to opt-into AMI and TVRs through
competitive suppliers.

The Compact also questions whether it was proper for Eversource to allocate all incremental cyber
security costs to its AMI/TVR initiative. This allocation seems indicative of Eversource’s tendency to
make AMI/TVR seem as unattractive as possible throughout its GMP. The Compact may consider asking
the DPU to evaluate whether or not the allocation of other costs was appropriate.

Question 1 — Should the Compact push for universal, opt-out AMI and TVR?

The Compact’s position on a more threshold-level issue is still evolving, however. While it may be
contrary to the DPU'’s direction, the Compact is actively considering whether there is merit to
Eversource’s argument that an opt-in approach to TVR may be most cost effective. It is a complex issue.

In support of its proposed approach, Eversource suggests that most residential and small commercial
customers do not have enough discretionary load (electricity use that can be shifted from one time of
the day to another) to benefit from a TVR. In fact, Eversource claims that some groups, including low-
income and elderly househo!ds, may see their bills increase if they participate in TVRs. While studies
cited by the DPU contradict this, this concern is shared by the Low-Income Energy Affordability Network
{LEAN), an advocate for low-income customers. Eversource also references studies and its own
experience to support the idea that customers simply are not interested in participating in TVRs or in
electricity bills at all. There are also a number of AMI-related benefits included in National Grid’s STIP
that Eversource does not include. The costs of AMI meters in the GMP also vary substantially,
depending on where in Eversource’s territory they are being installed. The Compact plans to request
that Eversource share more infermation that will allow the Compact to better evaluate these concerns.

It's crucial to note that Eversource’s position on AMI and TVR is contradicted by National Grid, which
advocates for universal AMI and opt-out TVR, as directed by the DPU. Notably, of National Grid’s four
potential investment scenarios, only its AMI-focused scenario has a 15-year benefit-cost ratio above 1
(National Grid GMP at 11). Throughout its GMP, National Grid cites its success in its grid modernization
pilot in Worcester, which included both universal AMI and opt-out TVR. Furthermore, because Grid
favors universal AMI, it has a more developed concept of how AMI customers will use AMI and benefit

GRID MODERNIZATION Page | 8



from TVRs, spending more time discussing interactions with EE programs, integrating appliances, and
other opportunities for customers to use and benefit from AMI and TVRs. This may explain, in part, the
divergent views National Grid and Eversource have on the costs and benefits of AMI and TVR.

The Compact does not yet take a position on the question of universal AMI and opt-out TVR, as it
requires additional information. It will be important for the Compact and its constituents to grapple
with whether universal AMI and opt-out TVRs should be a priority. On one hand, there may be merit to
Eversource’s claims that most customers would not make significant changes in response to universal
AMI and opt-out TVR and that implementation costs far outweigh potential benefits. On the other
hand, universal AMI and opt-out TVR will spur new technologies and services that will increase the
ability of customers to shift their consumption, bringing savings to individual customers and benefits to
the system as a whole. Additional information will help better evaluate these competing positions. in
the meantime, the Compact and its constituents should begin to consider their positions on universal
AMI and opt-out TVR.

MONETIZING TRANSMISSION AND DISTRIBUTION BENEFITS

One of the primary potential benefits from optimizing electricity demand through programs like TVR is a
reduction in the need for EDCs to build additional capacity into their distribution system. The idea is
simple — as TVRs encourage customers to shift electricity consumption to periods of lower demand, the
demand curve on the distribution system becomes smoother, which lower peaks. The result should be
reduced capital investments typically associated with increasing system peaks.® Eversource claims that
the geographic diversity and inherent unpredictability of its proposed opt-in approach will make it
impossible to defer distribution system upgrades based on TVR participation moderating system peaks.
National Grid, similarly, does not monetize deferred distribution system investments resulting from TVR.
Given that such investment deferrals could represent an enormous source of financial benefits which
could translate into lower distribution rates, the Compact should request that the EDCs revise their
proposals to increase the likelihood that TVR participation will lead to deferred capital investments and
to monetization of these benefits.

Question 2 — What level of electric reliability do Cape and Vineyard residents expect,

and how much are they willing to pay for that reliability?

GRID-FACING INVESTMENTS

The Compact will need to consider the importance of electric reliability to its Cape and Vineyard
customers in the context of the costs and benefits of reliability investments proposed by the EDCs in

& As an example, Rhode Island, where National Grid is the EDC, has adopted what it refers to as a System Reliability
Procurement Plan, which requires utilities to consider alternatives, such as efficiency or DG, to traditional system
upgrades. While these alternatives are not the same as TVRs, the concept is similar.

http://www.energy ri.gov/reliabilit

GRID MODERNIZATION Page | 9



their GMPs. Although the Compact’s focus is generally more on customer-facing GMP elements than
grid-facing investments, electric reliability is a major issue in the GMPs. At minimum, the Compact
should plan to verify that there is geographical equity with regard to the benefits and cost allocation
associated with reliability investments. Beyond that, the priority of this item for the Compact depends
in part on the value that the Cape and Vineyard, as a region, places on electric reliability. While there
will always be additional investments that can be made to further increase reliability, there are certainly
diminishing returns associated with such investments. The question then becomes one of priorities -
how much are customers willing to pay for marginal increases in reliability?

Question 3 — Should the Compact push for policies that will continue to support a robust expansion of
rributed generation in Massachusetts, or should it focus more on ensuring DG owners are making payments
for grid services?

DISTRIBUTED GENERATION

All three EDCs discussed a need to change current rate design in order to ensure success in achieving the
DPU'’s objective to increase the integration of distributed energy resources. These proposals are of
potentially grave concern to the Compact, given the DG installed in its territory in recent years.
Specifically, National Grid proposed the introduction of new fees to be assessed on distributed
generation (DG), such as solar PV, installed with no significant on-site load. Grid also proposed to
decrease volumetric fees (fees charged per kWh) and increase customer {monthly} charges for
residential customers, going as far as to suggest that fees based exclusively on demand (kW or kVA} and
customer charges would be fairest. Unitil proposed changes that would have even more detrimental
impacts on net-metered DG. While Eversource did not propose any similar changes in its GMP, it calls
the issue an important one that “needs to be resolved in order to facilitate increased installation of DER
under a fair rate structure.” (Eversource GMP at 14). In all cases, the EDCs claim that current rate
design, specifically that of net metering, allows DG owners to benefit from the grid without contributing
a fair amount to maintaining it.

The issue is a complex one. Certainly, all DG owners without storage backup benefit from access to the
grid to provide power when their generator is not producing power (e.g., the sun is not shining). To the
extent that such system owners have enough generation to effectively zero out their utility bill, they are
not making payments to EDCs to help maintain the grid. On the other end, DG proponents claim that
various benefits associated with DG actually make the installation of DG a net benefit to EDCs and their
customers. For example, DG produces power when demand is highest, assists in system reliability,
produces power closest to load (minimizing losses), reduces the need for capital investments in
distribution system, etc. Importantly, some of the proposed changes could also reduce the incentives
for customers to invest in energy efficiency (EE), which has myriad benefits, including reducing peak

GRID MODERNIZATION Page | 10



demand.? EE & DG also assist in job creation, retains energy dollars in the state, and helps the
Commonwealth to achieve legislative energy goals, including those set forth in the Global Warming
Solutions Act.® Because of the complexity of the issue, it becomes a question of priorities — whether
DG should be seen as something with enough benefits that it is worth supporting, potentially beyond its
true value to the grid, or if equity should always be the overriding concern, even if that yields policies
detrimental to DG.

The question of how to compensate DG overlaps with many other issues addressed in the GMPs. Still,
the DPU did not specifically require that net metering and DG compensation be addressed in the GMPs.
This issue is also complex and controversial. For these reasons, the Compact and other parties may
request that this question be removed from the GMP dockets and addressed by the DPU in a separate
docket. This procedural approach would allow for more deliberate consideration of net metering and
DG compensation that would be consistent across the territories of the three EDCs.

CONCLUSIO

The current grid modernization docket and ensuing implementation of a smarter grid will unfold over a
period of many years. However, the decisions made today will have impacts that will persist far into the
future. For that reason, it is crucial to consider and continue to discuss grid modernization and what it
will mean for the Cape and Vineyard today and in the future.

Please keep in mind that this document and the questions it raises are not intended to be
comprehensive. The Compact will raise additional questions and challenges in the event that it
intervenes, and other issues likely will be addressed by other participants in the proceeding. Instead,
this document is intended to spur discussion on some of the most challenging and far-reaching
questions prompted by Eversource’'s GMP.

% In a separate but related docket that involved the expansion of the Mashpee Substation, the DPU order includes
the condition that “NSTAR is strongly encouraged, in the future, to discuss with the CLC the potential for targeted
and/or incremental EE, well in advance of determining that a transmission or distribution project is needed in the
Company's Cape Cod service territory. NSTAR will be required to provide evidence of long-range EE planning
efforts in all future zoning exemption and Section 72 applications filed with the DPU.” Order, D.P. U. 14-03 at 20
(April 13, 2015).

¥ Some advocates suggest that an approach sometimes referred to a “Value of Solar” tariff is an ideal way to
address these concerns. Value of solar tariffs are designed to evaluate the real benefits of solar, and compensate
solar owners on that basis. Such an approach is intended to be fairer for both solar owners and other utility
customers, basing compensation on value, not on something more arbitrary like retail electricity prices. To date,
Minnesota and Austin, Texas have adopted value of solar tariffs. A good summary of value of solar tariffs is
available here: http://www.nrel.gov/tech_deployment/state_local_governments/basics_value-of-
solar_tariffs.html

GRID MODERNIZATION Page 11




March 7, 2016

Microgrids:

What are they? What is their value? Why and where should they be developed?

Whatis a
microgrid?

The U.S. DOE describes a
microgrid as “a group of
interconnected loads and
distributed energy
resources (DER) with
clearly defined electrical
boundaries that acts as a
single controliable entity
with respect to the grid
[and can] connect and
disconnect from the grid
to enable it to operate in
both grid-connected or
island mode”

(definition developed by
the Microgrid Exchange
Group, comprised of an
ad hoc group of
individuals working on
microgram research &
development)

http://energy.gov/oe/services/
technoloay-development/
smart-grid/role-microgrids-
helping-advance-nation-s-
energy-system

GALLIGAN ENERGY CONSULTING INC

What is the value of a microgrid?

The pending review and implementation of the Grid
Modernization Plans (GMPs) proposed by the investor owned-
utilities in Massachusetts presents significant opportunities and
challenges specific to the integration of energy efficiency, demand
response and distributed energy resources (DERs) that can
support the goals of a modern efficient and resilient power grid.

As a review, the GMP objectives for Massachusetts are:
1. reducing the effects of outages;

2. optimizing demand, which includes reducing system and
CUSTOMET COSts;

3. integrating distributed resources; and,

4. improving workforce and asset management.
(D.PU. 12-76-B at 2)

The MA Department of Public Utilities (DPU) stated “Grid
modernization is an important means for advancing the statutory
requirements and policy goals of further development of energy
efficiency, renewable energy resources, demand response,

electricity storage, microgrids, and EVs {(electric
vehicles).” (D.PU. 12-76-B at g)

Research and development efforts are underway to advance
microgrid demonstration projects across the United States and
are designed to meet many of the above GMP objectives. In
addition, due to the increasing frequency and intensity of
weather-caused grid outages in recent years, the U.S. DOE has
placed an added emphasis on R&D to enhance resilience to
climate change and extreme weather.




March 7, 2016

What does a Microgrid look like? (from U.S. DOE Microgrid Initiative)

- ST T T e P R S =", T ——— = Y T TR A e ——— —— ————

i \
Distribution P77 40T Bulk Supply Connection |
i Substation ""'_""E " {"“;El!_-‘]:‘l B ;' {sub-transmission) 1
¥ - A e ::;
!| Full -""‘ T S - . §
Slg‘ﬂstatitm i { . ">, Single .

1 crogrid g hCustomer: |
_ " il icrogrid ¢ |
{  FullFeeder o OM 4 ~ /M £ |
i Microgrid? __aull i £
L ¥ e = I |
f ..-" _coaiil e ‘ f rrr 1'
| + - e g 1 ' r 1
i - o b : | J [; |
| - i £ g
i 1 RN o

% i tl"' :i'J f: {'4 :
| pPartial i | t 7 4 {
| Feeder_} \ W -_
! Microgrid X s e ¢
': 1“ \‘\.‘ - R g # _.
'L, ﬂ‘.. k‘x_‘ P ‘
ﬁhw".ﬂ\aﬁ \H\“_"'--. .-v—""".-' R e e T IR ——— ..-—-n.:n%‘l

As shown above, a microgrid may be as small as a Single Customer Microgrid, or include a Partial
Feeder Microgrid, or a Full Feeder Microgrid or a Full Substation Microgrid. Components of
the microgrid include: generating resources (Gen), storage devices and loads including controlled loads.

Generating resources cover all sources possible at the scales and within the context of the microgrid,
e.g. fossil or biomass-fired small-scale combined heat and power (CHP), photovoltaic modules (PV), small
wind turbines, mini-hydro and micro-turbines, plug-in electric vehicles, for example.

Storage devices includes all of electrical, pressure, gravitational, flywheel and heat storage technologies.
While the microgrid concept focuses on a power system, heat storage can be relevant to its operation
whenever its existence affects the operation of the microgrid. For example, the availability of heat
storage will alter the desirable operating schedule of a CHP system as the electrical and heat loads are
decoupled. Similarly, the pre-cooling or heating of buildings will alter the load shape of heating
ventilation and air conditioning (HVAC) systems, and therefore the requirement faced by electricity
supply resources. Battery storage devices can also manage resource needs in combination with
intermittent resources such as PV.

Controlled loads, such as automatically dimmable lighting or delayed pumping, are particularly
important to microgrids simply by virtue of their scale. In small power systems, load variability becomes
more significant than in large utility-scale systems. The corollary is that load control, load shedding and
demand response can make a particularly valuable contribution to the microgrid.

GALLIGAN ENERGY CONSULTING INC 2



March 7, 2016

Why Would a Community Choose to Implement a Microgrid?

Depending on the generating resources available, type of load(s) and interconnection location to the local
distribution company, a microgrid can provide all requirements or some of the requirements for power by
the community. A microgrid not only provides local power but may do so more costeffectively, more
reliably than traditional grid sources. In addition, a microgrid allows communities to be more energy
independent and, depending on the mix of renewable sources, can be more environmentally friendly. In
short, the benefits can be economic, environmental and reliability/resiliency.

The City of Boston convened the Pace University Energy and Climate Center, facilitated by Dr.
Jonathan Raab, Raab Associated, Ltd., in a microgrid workshop series held in 2014 included stakeholder
representatives from the MA DPU, City of Boston, electric distribution companies (EDCs), distributed
generation and microgrid developers and customers. The workshops included legal and economic
analysis; identification of benefits, costs, deal-makers and deal-breakers; and the development of a straw
proposal for a multi-user microgrid that could be used as a template for pilot projects in Massachusetts.

In addition, as part of energy system planning, Boston undertook a Community Energy Study. This study
was commissioned by the Boston Redevelopment Authority in August of 2014, funded by a grant from the
Mass Clean Energy Center for microgrid planning with additional funding from the Department of
Homeland Security (Science and Technology). Project partners were: MIT Sustainable Design Lab, MIT
Lincoln Laboratories and Eversource. This project used advanced modeling and energy data to establish
city-wide consumption patterns (see below) and identified localized generation and distribution scenarios
to be used as foundational data to explore the viability of advanced energy systems, including microgrids.

6 8 10 12 14 16 10 20 22 24
howur

Total electricty demand (kWh)
Potential roof (%) PV praduction

Data and Analysis by

i SUSTAINABLE DESIGN LAB

GALLIGAN ENERGY CONSULTING INC 3



March 7, 2016

Where Should a Community Choose to Locate a Microgrid?

The location of a microgrid involves a number of factors, mentioned earlier, and communities with
funding through DOE/LBNL are, in California (CA), working with the CA Public Utilities Commission,
Investor Owned Utilities and other stakeholders to develop an optimization platform, hosted online, to
be able to identify meaningful behind-the-meter DER adoption patterns, potential microgrid sites and
demand resources. This optimization platform would evaluate the impacts of high renewable penetration
feeders on the distribution and transmission grid, all in support of statewide goals in California to
integrate 15 GW of distributed energy resources, including 12 GW of renewable energy on distribution
systems.

Here on Cape Cod and Martha'’s Vineyard, the Cape Light Compact and the Cape & Vineyard Electric
Cooperative are in the unique position to be able to assemble many of the components (PV resources,
energy efficiency/demand reductions, geographic end-use load profiles, electricity pricing and other
relevant price information, for example) that would go into the development of a local siting and
optimization tool that could, like California, evaluate the the impacts of and best choice for microgrids.

As an example, the Multi-Location DER-CAM (Distributed Energy Resources-Customer Adoption
Model, in development since 2000 by Berkeley Lab), enhanced modeling capabilities for microgrids is
illustrated below for a District Energy System. The objective of the DER-CAM model is to minimize the
cost of operating on-site generation and CHP systems, either for individual customer sites or a microgrid.

To Electrical
Distribution —@—-—
Network

1 mﬂaﬁ"“” Building with DERS (e.g.
Electrical Cable/Line PV, Solar Thermal,
\ Bottery) and Loads
- ‘-'I.:.. .. I| 2 = X
] [e— To Outside

Heating
K Thermal Pip:\

Network
Thermal Node

District Energy System (Microgrid)

GALLIGAN ENERGY CONSULTING INC = 4



March 7, 2016

Microgrids Enhancing the Resiliency of Distribution Systems

Pacific Northwest National Laboratory and Washington State University are working together to examine
the use of microgrids as a resiliency resource. Modeling is being done to examine use of generating
resources that may serve loads within, as well as outside, the boundaries of the microgrid. In addition,
DOE awarded more than $8 million to seven microgrid demonstration projects to help communities
better prepare for extreme weather events and electric grid disruptions. These projects will bring
together communities, technology developers and providers, and utilities to develop advanced microgrid
controllers and system designs for microgrids under 10 mW in capacity.

Microgrids are key building block for a Smart Grid

The DOE Smart Grid R&D Program has launched a national effort on electric distribution grid resilience
that considers microgrids a key building block. This effort not only responds to the increasing
vulnerability of grid outages due to climate change and extreme weather events but also supports
Executive Order 12653 “Preparing the United States for the Impacts of Climate Change” and the goal of
“building stronger and safer communities and infrastructure” in accordance with “The President’s Climate
Action Plan”. The Smart Grid R&D Program resides within the DOE Office of Electricity Delivery and
Energy Reliability (OE) and has the program objectives of:

* modernizing the electric distribution grid through adaptation and integration of advanced
technologies (information, communications and automation) and new operational paradigms
(microgrids and transactive controls, such as smart meters with two-way communications capability
that can allow time-varying prices to trigger load changes at a price-responsive device or overall
building/facilicy level (e.g. signals to programmable communicating thermostats (PCTs)) that turn-
up the set point on airconditioning systems)).

+ supporting the increasing demand for renewable energy integration and grid reliability and
resiliency at the state and local levels.

These ongoing microgrid demonstration projects (see map below) consist of renewable and distributed
systems integration (RDSI) projects designed for peak load reduction. In 2008, 9 RDSI projects were
selected via competitive DOE solicitation with the primary goals to (1) demonstrate at least 15 percent
peak demand reduction on the distribution feeder or substation level through integrating DER, and (2)
demonstrate microgrids that can operate in both grid parallel and islanded modes. This integrated
approach has the potential to allow more power to be delivered through existing infrastructure, thereby
deferring transmission and distribution investment, and to increase the reliability of the grid.

GALLIGAN ENERGY CONSULTING INC 5



March 7, 2016

Washington

] Montana Hotth Dakota | Minrwsata
Oregon [ ] ® n
Wisconsin e Vot A,
Kaho W South Dakota o Mctjgan AL
? I
Hevada Mbasa | 2 ) Q 0 ¢
Uah ] EEcts | Indiand ng@ E::""
) cdado ® Viegil) Viegio et 111
!lagnia © @ s Missourf Harducky *
*Tmm. g
W Ao um%. B | nianay South Caroina ¢ R&D Test Beds (DOE)
piss | PBhEP3 | Beorgia © R&D Test Beds {Non-DOE)
e ® ; @ DOE/DOD (Assessments and SPIDERS)
Texas | O DOD ESTCP
: L
Aata \ ) ntre Fka O Peak Load Reduction
HN& ® ARRA SGDP
% O Industry MUtility/University/Other Fed Led

Sources and References:

Berkeley Lab. DER Siting And Optimization Tool to Enable Large Scale Deployment of DER In California.
[Onlinel. bttps://building-microgrid.ibl.goviprojects/der-siting-and-optimization-tool-enable

Berkeley Lab. Microgrid Definitions. [Onlinel. btps://building-microgrid lbl gov/microgrid-definitions

City of Boston Microgrid Workshops. [Online] bttp://www raabassociates.org/main/projects.asp?
proj=116&state= Expertise

K. P Schneider; EK. Titffner, M. A. Elizondo, C.C. Liu and Y. Xu, “Microgrid as a resiliency resource,” PNNL-23674,
Facific Northwest Nat. Lab., Richland, Wasbington, Sept. 2014.

The Role of Microgrids in Helping to Advance the Nation’s Energy System [Online] bttp-//ener /oelservices/
technology-development/smart-grid/role-microgrids-helping-advance-nation-s-energy-syst-o

Swing, Bradford. (2015). City of Boston Energy System Planning. {Onlinel] bttp://aceee.org/sites/default/files/pdf/
conferences/ie/2015/Session3 B-Swing-IE15-12.7.15.pdf

Ton, D, & Wang, W. (2015). A More Resilient Grid: The U.S. Department of Energy Joins with Stakebolders in an
R&D Plan. IEEE Power and Energy Magazine, 130), 26-34.

Ton, D, & Smith, M. (z012). The U.S. Department of Energy's Microgrid Initiative. The Electricity Journal, 25(8),
84794.

U.S. Department of Energy. (June, 2014). 2014 DOE Resilient Electric Distribution Grid R&D Workshop summary
report. [Onlinel. Available: bttp://energy govive/articles/final-report-and-other-materials-2014-resilient-electric-
distribution-grid-rd-workshop

GALLIGAN ENERGY CONSULTING INC 6



BCK

=a BCK LAW, P.C.

ATTORNEYS AT LAW

The firm has atiorneys also admitied 271 Waveziey Oaxs Roap, Suite 203 Facsmne: B02.419.8283
Io practice in District of Columbia, WaltHam, MassacHuserrs 02452 E-Man: bekboston@bek.com
idoho, New York and Vermont 617.244.2500 WeBsITE: www.bck.com
March 30, 2016
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL

ORIGINAL BY HAND DELIVERY

Mark D. Marini, Secretary
Department of Public Utilities
One South Station, 5™ Floor
Boston, MA 02110

Re: D.P.U. 15-122
Petition of NSTAR Electric Company and Western Massachusetts Electric
Company, each d/b/a Eversource Energy, for Approval by the DPU of their
Grid Modernization Plan.

Dear Secretary Marini:

Enclosed for filing please find an original and one copy of the Petition for Leave to
Intervene of the Cape Light Compact along with a Notice of Appearance and Certificate of
Service in the above-referenced matter.

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions regarding this filing.

Sincerely,

“Pheccad Grelkoo
Rebecca Zachas

RFZ/drb
Enclosures
ce: Tina Chin, Hearing Officer (via email and hand delivery)

Danielle Winter, Esq. (via email and first class mail)

Donald Boecke, Esq. (via email and first class mail)

Margaret T. Downey, Cape Light Compact Administrator (via email and first class mail)

VErRmMONT OFFICE: MounTain States OFFICE:
P.O. Box 205 P.O. Box 1527
Woodstock, Vermont 05091 Ketchum, lIdaho 83340
Telephone: 802,457.9050 Telephone: 208.727.9734
Focsimile: 802 4198283 Facsimile: 802.419.8283

E-Mail: bekvi@bck.com E-Mail: bekidaho@bck.com



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

)
Petition of NSTAR Electric Company and )
Western Massachusetts Electric Company ) D.P.U. 15-122
d/b/a Eversource Energy For Approval of )
their Grid Modernization Plan )
)

PETITION FOR LEAVE TO INTERVENE OF THE
CAPE LIGHT COMPACT

Pursuant to 220 C.M.R. §1.03 and the Notice of Filing, Public Hearing, and Procedural
Conference issued by the Department of Public Utilities (“DPU” or “Department™) on March 8,
2016 (the “Notice”), the towns of Aquinnah, Barnstable, Bourne, Brewster, Chatham, Chilmark,
Dennis, Edgartown, Eastham, Falmouth, Harwich, Mashpee, Oak Bluffs, Orleans, Provincetown,
Sandwich, Tisbury, Truro, West Tisbury, Wellfleet and Yarmouth, and the counties of
Barnstable and Dukes County, acting together as the Cape Light Compact (the “Compact™),
hereby respectfully petition the Department for leave to intervene as a full party in the above-

captioned proceeding. In support of this petition, the Compact states the following:

L INTRODUCTION

1. As required by the Department’s Order in D.P.U. 12-76-B, on August 19, 2015,
NSTAR Electric Company and Western Massachusetts Electric Company d/b/a Eversource
Energy (“Eversource”™) filed a proposed Grid Modernization Plan for approval of the Department
(the “GMP”).

2. Eversource is a local electric distribution company providing basic service to

customers in its service territory that would otherwise receive service from a competitive



supplier. Eversource is the distribution company providing service in the Compact’s service
territory.

3. Eversource proposed a grid-focused plan with an estimated $430.7 million in
short-term investments in areas including advanced analytics, real-time grid-wide situational
awareness, advanced distribution automation, grid resiliency, distributed energy resources
integration, communications, and cyber security. Eversource declined to adopt an opt-out
advanced metering infrastructure (“AMI”) program, even though it acknowledged that it is the
“only technology that will satisfy all four of the advanced metering functionalities set out by the
Department.” GMP at 87. Instead, Eversource proposed two opt-in time-varying rate (“TVR”)
designs with associated enabling metering. /d. at 70. As proposed, the meters would rely on
hourly data transmission using cellular technology, with a secondary option of networked meter
reading in areas where the communication network for distribution automation has been rolled
out. Id. at 80.

4. The Compact was a participant throughout the stakeholder process in the
Department’s grid modernization proceeding in D.P.U. 12-76 and filed comments and reply
comments in that proceeding. Cape Light Compact Comments, D.P.U. 12-76 (July 24, 2013);
Cape Light Compact Comments, D.P.U. 12-76-A (January 17, 2014); Cape Light Compact

Reply Comments, D.P.U. 12-76-A (March 21, 2014).

IL. BACKGROUND OF THE COMPACT
5. The Compact is a governmental aggregator under G.L. c. 164, §134 and consists
of the twenty-one towns in Barnstable and Dukes Counties, as listed above, as well as the two

counties themselves. It was originally formed in 1997 and is organized through a formal Inter-



Governmental Agreement entered into by all of the towns, as well as Barnstable and Dukes
counties, pursuant to G.L. c. 40, §4A, as amended from time to time. The Compact’s
Aggregation Plan was approved by the Department in D.T.E. 00-47 on August 10, 2000 and its
Updated and Revised Aggregation Plan was approved by the Department in D.P.U. 14-69 on
May 1, 2015. The Compact maintains a business office located at 3195 Main Street, Barnstable,
Massachusetts 02630,

6. The purposes of the Compact include, among other things: (1) to provide the basis
for aggregation of all consumers on a non-discriminatory basis; (2) to negotiate the best terms
and conditions for electricity supply and transparent pricing; (3) to improve quality of service
and reliability; (4) to encourage renewable energy development; and (5) to administer energy
efficiency and demand response activities. Sixth Amended and Restated Compact Inter-
Governmental Agreement at Article I (November 18, 2015).

7. The Compact operates a municipal aggregation competitive supply program,
which currently provides electric power supply to roughly 130,000 customers out of the 202,000
eligible customers across all customer classes who are located within the Compact’s service
territory.

8. As a municipal aggregator, the Compact also operates as the energy efficiency
Program Administrator for all ratepayers on Cape Cod and Martha’s Vineyard. The Compact
has continuously administered award-winning energy efficiency programs since 2001. See
D.T.E. 00-47C (April 6, 2001) (approving Phase I of energy efficiency plan); D.T.E. 03-39
(approving Phase II); D.T.E. 05-34 (November 8, 2005) (approving Phase IIT); D.P.U. 07-47
(December 24, 2007) (approving 2007-2012 plan, subsequently amended by order in D.P.U. 07-

47-A (October 1, 2008) and D.P.U. 08-113 (May 29, 2009)); D.P.U. 09-119 (approving first



statewide three-year plan for plan years 2010-2012); D.P.U. 12-107 {(approving 2013-2015
statewide three-year plan); and D.P.U. 15-166 (approving 2016-2018 statewide three-year plan).

9. In the most recent three-year 2016-2018 Statewide Energy Efficiency Plan, the
Compact provides for a demand response offering that includes enhanced energy efficiency
initiatives. See D.P.U. 15-166, Compact Initial Filing at Exhibit Compact-11 (October 30,
2015). Through its demand response initiative, the Compact aims to reduce customer demand
through curtailment events and to encourage load-shifting through installation of demand
response technologies and behavioral changes. /d.

10.  The Compact participates in various Department proceedings as an advocate for
all the ratepayers on Cape Cod and Martha’s Vineyard. In particular, the Compact actively
participates in matters involving potential economic impacts and benefits to these ratepayers.
See, e.g., D.P.U. 10-170 (intervening in Northeast Utilities merger proceeding); D.P.U. 10-82
(participating in smart grid pilot evaluation working group); D.P.U. 12-76 (participating in grid
modernization investigation); D.P.U. 11-75 (distributed generation interconnection); D.P.U. 12-
120 (participating in service quality standards investigation); and D.P.U. 09-33 (Eversource
Smart Grid Pilot - limited participant). In addition, the Compact has regularly participated in
proceedings concerning proper cost recovery to prevent cross subsidization between basic
service and distribution customers, as well as other matters that may impact ratepayers on Cape
Cod and Martha’s Vineyard. See, e.g., D.P.U. 12-126-A, Interlocutory Order, at 13, 16-17

(August 5, 2013); and D.P.U. 11-05/06/07, Order (August 19, 2011).



IIl. PARTICIPATION BY THE COMPACT IN THIS PROCEEDING

11.  In conducting adjudicatory hearings, the Department “may allow any person
showing that he may be substantially and specifically affected by the proceeding to intervene as
a party in the whole or any portion of the proceeding...” G.L. c. 304, §10(4); 220 C.M.R.
§1.03(1)(b).

12. The Compact seeks to intervene in this proceeding both as a consumer advocate
for its consumers and as an energy efficiency program and demand response administrator (G.L.
¢. 25, §21) because of potential impacts and precedents that may be set on its energy efficiency
and other programs. The Compact is particularly concerned about grid modemization
investments (e.g., advanced metering and TVR) and principles or policies that could negatively
impact the Commonwealth’s competitive markets and customers’ power to choose. Compact
Comments, D.P.U. 12-76-A (January 17, 2014).

13.  As the Commonwealth’s largest municipal aggregator and as an energy efficiency
program administrator for customers in the Compact’s service territory, the Compact can provide
unique insights based on its own experiences to this investigation into Eversource’s GMP. The
Compact can best serve its members and customers through its active participation in this docket.
The Compact’s unique status as the only municipal aggregator Program Administrator
complicates its implementation of its ideal demand response offerings. In its recent Three-Year
Plan filing in D.P.U. 15-166, the Compact proposed to begin establishing a platform for the
“connected home™ and to install The Energy Detective (“TED") devices on up te 600 residential
and small commercial electric meters through the Compact’s Home Energy Assessment (“HES”)
and Business Energy Assessment (“‘BEA™) initiatives. See D.P.U. 15-166, Compact Initial

Filing, Exhibit Compact-11 at 1 (October 30, 2015) (noting Compact’s ability to fully implement



a demand response program requires advanced metering and time-varying rates). TED will
allow electric customers to access their electric usage on a real time basis through a Compact
custornized application on their mobile device or computer. /d. However, this proposal is not
ideal, and the Compact would propose the installation of advanced metering instead of TED but
cannot do so until implementation of advanced metering in Eversource’s service territory. /d. at
3.

14.  Absent its participation in this docket, the Compact has no ability to choose or
even influence the technologies or investment that would support its demand response efforts.
Unlike an electric distribution company, the Compact only administers and cannot design or
select the infrastructure, which puts the Compact at a distinct disadvantage.

15. Eversource, National Grid, and Unitil each submitted their own, radically
different GMPs. The Compact is generally concerned about such different plans being adopted
across the service territories in the Commonwealth, especially with the differing impacts on
competitive suppliers in those territories. Eversource’s GMP takes a conservative approach to
grid modernization, emphasizing incremental investments. With regard to Eversource’s GMP,
the Compact has many concerns, some of which are raised below.

16.  Eversource’s proposed GMP does not appear to satisfy requirements set forth in
the Department’s D.P.U. 12-76-B Order in a number of ways. For example, Eversource has not
proposed opt-out AMI in its GMP. GMP at 86. Eversource did not make TVR a default option
for all consumers, and the design of its opt-in TVRs do not conform to the Department’s
framework. Eversource also requires consumers to pay additional costs in order to get real-time
access to data. GMP at 81. Further analysis is necessary to determine whether Eversource’s

GMP is consistent with the Department’s requirements in D.P.U. 12-76-B.



17.  Eversource’s GMP must ensure consumer access to smart grid technology in a
manner that is consistent with the Department’s directives as well as competitive supply. In its
Order in D.P.U. 14-04-C, the Department clearly stated that:

our Order will alert competitive suppliers, manufacturers, and others that

individual customers, assisted by new technologies (e.g., advanced meters,

in-home displays, programmable thermostats, load control devices), will

be empowered to respond to the actual varying costs of electricity and

save money by altering usage based on price signals that reflect these

actual costs. Thus, our Order will provide an opportunity for competitive

suppliers to develop a variety of time varying rate products and for

manufacturers to develop new technologies to help customers to manage

their electricity costs.

D.P.U. 14-04-C, Order at 3. Instead, in its GMP, Eversource proposed that anyone wishing to
have a smart meter should enroll in Eversource’s basic service power supply. Requiring
customers to be on basic service to obtain a smart meter is in direct conflict with the
Massachusetts Electric Restructuring Act, Chapter 164 of the Acts of 1997, as well as the
Department’s D.P.U. 14-04-C Order. Eversource wholly failed to take into account independent
generation suppliers, such as the Compact, in its service territory. Eversource’s GMP does not
address the provision of data to third-party suppliers, or the ability of suppliers to develop TVR
products. As proposed, Eversource’s GMP would severely limit customer choice, and thus raises
fundamental legal issues that must be fully examined.

18.  The Compact also questions whether some of Eversource’s proposed investments
are appropriately classified. For example, the GMP allocates investments for “enhanced” tree
trimming, double pole removal and manhole inspections as a grid modemization cost. GMP,

Exhibit EVERSOURCE-CAH-1 at 15. Costs related to standard maintenance or core utility

Junctions do not belong in the GMP. Eversource also assigns all of its proposed cyber-security



costs to TVR, as it claims that its current cyber security practices are already sufficient for all of
the other grid modernization investments. GMP at 212-13.

19.  This investigation must ensure that investment costs are properly classified and
subjected to a cost/benefit analysis. Those costs must also be properly allocated to consumers
who will benefit from them. The Compact seeks to ensure that consumers on Cape Cod and
Martha’s Vineyard do not end up subsidizing improvements in Boston or other areas that provide
them with little or no benefit to them.

20.  The Compact also wants to ensure continued opportunities for distributed
generation development. The Compact has helped sponsor distributed generation and has
participated in such distributed generation proceedings as D.P.U. 11-75 where the current
interconnection standards were developed. The Compact also purchases renewable energy
certificates (“RECs”), and may be interested in purchasing output from distributed generation
projects to blend into its competitive supply. The Compact is considering different options as to
how distributed generation may contribute to system reliability and energy efficiency goals. The
Compact recognizes that Eversource’s GMP includes some investment in distributed generation
projects (e.g., its New Bedford storage project), but the Compact wants to ensure that
Eversource’s GMP properly accounts for distributed generation, including the technological
capacity needed to accommodate more distributed generation.

21.  Finally, the Compact can provide its unique expertise and experience as it relates
to energy efficiency and demand response matters relevant to this proceeding, Eversource’s
GMP does not adequately address how its GMP is consistent with the Department policy
framework that required that all investments “benefit all customers by reducing peak energy and

capacity market costs; increasing system efficiencies and support the distribution system by



reducing peak demand; and providing appropriate incentives for distributed resources such as
photovoltaic generation, electricity storage, and electric vehicles, as well as targeted energy
efficiency and demand response.” D.P.U. 14-04-C Order at 3.

22.  In addition, the Compact is actively engaged in exploring the targeted delivery of
energy efficiency and demand response initiatives for the purpose of reducing demand. See
Petition of NSTAR Electric Company for an Exemption to the Zoning of the Town of Mashpee,
D.P.U. 14-03, Order at 20 (April 13, 2015) (directing the Compact and NSTAR to explore geo-
targeting initiatives in an effort to delay infrastructure investment). The Compact is also
analyzing geo-targeting of energy efficiency measures, renewable energy, and energy storage as
a means to delay potential infrastructure investment to support the increasing load and system
constraints on Cape Cod and Martha’s Vineyard.

23.  Accordingly, the Compact’s participation in this proceeding will contribute to a
full and fair hearing in this proceeding in that the Compact will represent unique interests from
its perspective as an energy aggregator and energy efficiency program administrator. The
Compact’s participation will also help facilitate an appropriate and informed result in this
proceeding. The Compact’s intervention will not unduly burden the Department, Eversource nor
any of the other parties that filed to or may intervene in this proceeding in that the Compact will
refrain from introducing duplicative or repetitive material and will cooperate in ensuring a
speedy and efficient proceeding.

24.  Based on the foregoing reasons, the Compact will be substantially and specifically
affected by the outcome of this proceeding. The Compact can best serve and protect the interests
of its members and customers through its active and full participation herein. No other party can

adequately represent the Compact in this proceeding.



IV. CONCLUSION

10

WHEREFORE, for the above reasons, the Compact respectfully moves that the

Department allow this petition to intervene in this proceeding,

Dated: March 30, 2016

Respectfully submitted,
THE CAPE LIGHT COMPACT

By its attorneys,

W2

Placent Gpebor
pleihen

¢¢7 yAY//S

Jeffrey M. Bemstein, Esq. (jbernstein@bck.com)
Rebecca F. Zachas, Esq. (rzachas@bck.com)
Jo Ann Bodemer, Esq. {(jbodemer@bck.com)

Audrey A. Eidelman, Esq. (aeidelman@bck.com)
BCK LAW, P.C.

271 Waverley Oaks Road, Suite 203
Waltham, MA 02452

(617) 244-9500 (voice)

(802) 419-8283 (fax)




COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

)
Petition of NSTAR Electric Company and )
Western Massachusetts Electric Company ) D.P.U. 15-122
d/b/a Eversource Energy For Approval of )
their Grid Modernization Plan )
)
NOTICE OF APPEARANCE

The undersigned attorneys hereby give notice of their appearance as counsel for the Cape
Light Compact, in the above-captioned case.,

Respectfully Submitted,

THE CAPE LIGHT COMPACT
By its Attorneys,

W

Pbeccnd e
e

//lfzuf Ll

Jeffrey M. Bemnstein, Esg. (jbernstein@bck.com)
Rebecca F. Zachas, Esq. (rzachas@bck.com)
Jo Ann Bodemer, Esq. (jbodemer@bck.com)

Audrey A. Eidelman, Esq. (aecidelman@bck.com)
BCK Law, P.C.

271 Waverley Oaks Road, Suite 203
Waltham, Massachusetts 02452
Telephone: (617) 244-9500
Facsimile: (802) 419-8283

Dated: March 30, 2016



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

)
Petition of NSTAR Electric Company and )
Western Massachusetts Electric Company ) D.P.U. 15-122
d/b/a Eversource Energy For Approval of )
their Grid Modernization Plan )
)
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I have this day served the foregoing document(s) upon Secretary
Mark D. Marini and Hearing Officers Tina Chin and Sarah Herbert via electronic mail and hand
delivery, upon the Service List via electronic mail and first class mail in this matter.

Dated this 30" day of March, 2016.

Rheccad Freleo

Rebecca Zachas, Esq. (rzachas@bck.com)
BCK Law, P.C.

271 Waverley Oaks Road, Suite 203
Waltham, MA 02452

617 244-9500 (Phone)

802 419-8283 (Fax)




BCK

== BCK LAW, P.C.

ATTORNEYS AT LAW

the firm has allorneys olso admitied 271 Waveriey Oaks Roap, Suite 203 Facsimne: 802.419.8283
to praclice in District of Columbia, WaLTHAM, MAssacHuserTs 02452 E-Man: bckboston@bck.com
idaho, New York and Vermont 617.244.9500 Wessite: www.bck.com
March 30, 2016
VI4 ELECTRONIC MAIL

ORIGINAL BY HAND DELIVERY

Mark D. Marini, Secretary
Department of Public Utilities
One South Station, 5" Floor
Boston, MA 02110

Re: D.PU 15-120
Petition of Massachusetts Electric Company and Nantucket Electric Company
d/b/a National Grid for Approval by the DPU of its Grid Modernization Plan.

Dear Secretary Marini:

Enclosed for filing please find an original and one copy of the Petition for Leave to
Intervene of the Cape Light Compact along with a Notice of Appearance and Certificate of
Service in the above-referenced matter.

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions regarding this filing.

Sincerely,

“Rleccad Grelkoo
Rebecca Zachas
RFZ/drb
Enclosures
cc:  Sarah Herbert, Hearing Officer (via email and hand delivery)
Melissa Liazos, Esq. (via email and first class mail)

Donald Boecke, Esq. (via email and first class mail)
Margaret T. Downey, Cape Light Compact Administrator (via email and first class mail)

VermonT OFFICE: MOUNTAIN STaTES OFFICE:
P.O. Box 205 P.O. Box 1527
Woodstock, Vermont 05091 Ketchum, ldaho 83340
Telephone: 802.457.9050 Telephone: 208.727.9734
Facsimile: 802.419.8283 Facsimile: 802.419.8283

E-Mail; bckvi@bck.com E-Mail: bekidaho@bck.com



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

Petition of Massachusetts Electric Company and
Nantucket Electric Company d/b/a National Grid
For Approval of its Grid Modernization Plan

D.P.U. 15-120

R S S

PETITION FOR LEAVE TO INTERVENE OF THE
CAPE LIGHT COMPACT

Pursuant to 220 C.M.R. §1.03 and the Corrected Notice of Filing, Public Hearing, and
Procedural Conference issued by the Department of Public Utilities (“DPU” or “Department”) on
March 9, 2016 (the “Notice™), the towns of Aquinnah, Bamnstable, Bourne, Brewster, Chatham,
Chilmark, Dennis, Edgartown, Eastham, Falmouth, Harwich, Mashpee, Oak Bluffs, Orleans,
Provincetown, Sandwich, Tisbury, Truro, West Tisbury, Wellfleet and Yarmouth, and the
counties of Barnstable and Dukes County, acting together as the Cape Light Compact (the
“Compact”), hereby respectfully petition the Department for leave to intervene as a full party in

the above-captioned proceeding. In support of this petition, the Compact states the following:

L. INTRODUCTION

1. As required by the Department’s Order in D.P.U. 12-76-B, on August 19, 2015,
Massachusetts Electric Company and Nantucket Electric Company d/b/a National Grid
(“National Grid”) filed a proposed Grid Modernization Plan for approval of the Department (the

ﬁn’-GMP?’)‘



2. National Grid is a local electric distribution company providing basic service to
customers throughout the Commonwealth that would otherwise receive service from a
competitive supplier.

3. National Grid’s GMP proposed four alternatives for grid modernization in its
service territory with different levels of investment in advanced metering infrastructure (*AMI™)
and grid upgrades. GMP at 9. National Grid described the GMP as beginning “a discussion
regarding the scale, scope and timing of grid modernization investments.” GMP at 7. National
Grid’s proposed investments include advanced meter technology, communications, distribution
control systems, advanced distribution automation, voltage management and associated
infrastructure required to support these capabilities.

4. In addition, National Grid proposed a rate design change away from recovering
distribution system costs through variable per-kWh charges, and toward customer charges that
reflect customer size. GMP at 199. The proposed charges would be based upon the size of the
customer, as determined by metered kWh, and would be applicable to all customers, including
those with installed distributed generation. /d.

5. The Compact was a participant throughout the stakeholder process in D.P.U. 12-
76 and filed comments and reply comments in that proceeding. Cape Light Compact Comments,
D.P.U. 12-76 (July 24, 2013); Cape Light Compact Comments, D.P.U. 12-76-A (January 17,

2014); Cape Light Compact Reply Comments, D.P.U. 12-76-A (March 21, 2014).

1. BACKGROUND OF THE COMPACT
6. The Compact is a governmental aggregator under G.L. c. 164, §134 and consists

of the twenty-one towns in Barnstable and Dukes Counties, as listed above, as well as the two



counties themselves. It was originally formed in 1997 and is organized through a formal Inter-
Governmental Agreement entered into by all of the towns, as well as Barnstable and Dukes
counties, pursuant to G.L. c. 40, §4A, as amended from time to time. The Compact’s
Aggregation Plan was approved by the Department in D.T.E. 00-47 on August 10, 2000 and its
Updated and Revised Aggregation Plan was approved by the Department in D.P.U. 14-69 on
May 1, 2015. The Compact maintains a business office located at 3195 Main Street, Barnstable,
Massachusetts 02630.

7. The purposes of the Compact include, among other things: (1) to provide the basis
for aggregation of all consumers on a non-discriminatory basis; (2) to negotiate the best terms
and conditions for electricity supply and transparent pricing; (3) to improve quality of service
and reliability; (4) to encourage renewable energy development; and (5) to administer energy
efficiency and demand response activities. Sixth Amended and Restated Compact Inter-
Governmental Agreement at Article I (November 18, 2015).

8. The Compact operates a municipal aggregation competitive supply program,
which currently provides electric power supply to roughly 130,000 customers out of the 202,000
eligible customers across all customer classes who are located within the Compact’s service
territory.

9. As a municipal aggregator, the Compact also operates as the energy efficiency
Program Administrator for all ratepayers on Cape Cod and Martha’s Vineyard. The Compact
has continuously administrated award-winning energy efficiency programs since 2001. See
D.T.E. 00-47C (April 6, 2001) (approving Phase I of energy efficiency plan); D.T.E. 03-39
(approving Phase II); D.T.E. 05-34 (November 8, 2005) (approving Phase III); D.P.U. 07-47

(December 24, 2007) (approving 2007-2012 plan, subsequently amended by order in D.P.U. 07-



47-A (October 1, 2008) and D.P.U. 08-113 (May 29, 2009)); D.P.U. 09-119 (approving first
statewide three-year plan for plan years 2010-2012); D.P.U. 12-107 (approving 2013-2015
statewide three-year plan); and D.P.U. 15-166 (approving 2016-2018 statewide three-year plan).

10.  In the most recent three-year 2016-2018 Statewide Energy Efficiency Plan, the
Compact provides for a demand response offering that includes similar enhanced energy
efficiency initiatives as proposed by National Grid in D.P.U. 15-161 (Petition of National Grid
for Approval of its 2016-18 Three-Year Energy Efficiency Plan) and D.P.U. 16-06 (Petition of
National Grid for Approval of a Nantucket Non-Wires Alternative Project). See D.P.U. 15-166,
Compact Initial Filing (“Three-Year Plan”), Exhibit Compact-11 (October 30, 2015). Through
its demand response initiative, the Compact aims to reduce customer demand through
curtailment events and to encourage load-shifting through installation of demand response
technologies and behavioral changes. /d.

11.  The Compact participates in various Department proceedings as an advocate for
all the ratepayers on Cape Cod and Martha’s Vineyard. In particular, the Compact actively
participates in matters involving potential economic impacts and benefits to these ratepayers.
See e.g., D.P.U. 10-170 (intervening in Northeast Utilities merger proceeding); D.P.U. 10-82
(participating in smart grid pilot evaluation working group); D.P.U. 12-76 (participating in grid
modernization investigation); D.P.U. 12-120 (participating in service quality standards
investigation); and D.P.U. 09-32 (National Grid Smart Grid Pilot - limited participant). In
addition, the Compact has regularly participated in proceedings concerning proper cost recovery
to prevent cross subsidization between basic service and distribution customers, as well as other

matters that may impact ratepayers on Cape Cod and Martha’s Vineyard. Seee.g., D.P.U. 12-



126-A, Interlocutory Order, at 13, 16-17 (August 5, 2013); and D.P.U. 11-05/06/07, Order

(August 19, 2011).

III. PARTICIPATION BY THE COMPACT IN THIS PROCEEDING

12. In conducting adjudicatory hearings, the Department “may allow any person
showing that he may be substantially and specifically affected by the proceeding to intervene as
a party in the whole or any portion of the proceeding...” G.L. c. 30A, §10(4); 220 C.M.R.
§1.03(1)(b).

13.  The Compact seeks to intervene in this proceeding both as a consumer advocate
for its consumers and as an energy efficiency program administrator because of potential impacts
and precedents that may be set on its own energy efficiency and other programs. The Compact is
particularly concerned about grid modernization investments (e.g., advanced metering and TVR)
and principles or policies that could negatively impact the Commonwealth’s competitive markets
and customers’ power to choose. Compact Comments, D.P.U. 12-76-A (January 17, 2014).

14.  The Compact’s unique status as the only municipal aggregator Program
Administrator complicates its implementation of its ideal demand response offerings. In its
recent Three-Year Plan in D.P.U. 15-166, the Compact proposed to begin establishing a platform
for the “connected home” and to install The Energy Detective (“TED”) devices on up to 600
residential and small commercial electric meters through the Compact’s Home Energy
Assessment (“HES”) and Business Energy Assessment (“BEA™) initiatives. See D.P.U. 15-166
at Exhibit Compact-11 at 1 (noting Compact’s ability to fully implement a demand response
program requires advanced metering and time-varying rates). TED will allow electric customers

to access their electric usage on a real time basis through a Compact customized application on



their mobile device or computer. /d. However, this proposal is not ideal, and the Compact
would propose the installation of advanced metering instead of TED but cannot do so until
implementation of advanced metering in the distribution company’s service territory. /d. at 3.

15.  Asthe Commonwealth’s largest municipal aggregator and as an energy efficiency
program administrator for customers in the Compact’s service territory, the Compact can provide
unique insights based on its own experiences in this investigation into National Grid’s GMP.
The Compact can best serve its members and customers through its active participation in this
docket. The Compact has various concerns about how the National Grid GMP could affect its
own customers and programs as well as customers, competitive suppliers, and programs on a
state-wide basis.

16.  If the GMPs are implemented as currently proposed, there would be vast
inconsistencies across service territories in grid modernization. The Compact believes that there
must be consistency between the offerings of distribution companies regarding the type of TVR
(opt-out or opt-in) and customer TVR eligibility (basic service and competitive supply) so a full
array of demand response offerings may be available to the maximum number of customers and
the full potential benefits of demand response realized. Energy efficiency and competitive
supply programs would have a difficult time operating on a state-wide basis with such
inconsistencies in place. Competitive suppliers in some service territories could offer more
services and programs than competitive suppliers in other service territories. For example, as
proposed, a competitive supplier in National Grid’s service territory would be able to offer its
customers more programs and services if National Grid implements opt-out AMI and TVR, in
contrast to the limited programming available to competitive suppliers through Eversource’s opt-

in TVR proposals.



17.  The GMPs are in the early development stages, and National Grid recognized that
its GMP is intended to begin “a discussion regarding the scale, scope and timing of grid
modernization investments.” GMP at 7. National Grid, Eversource, and Unitil each submitted
their own, radically different GMPs. National Grid presented the most ambitious proposal for
advanced metering and TVR with its four alternatives. National Grid’s GMP is likely to have
significant impacts not just in its own service territory but statewide. Those impacts will be long
term in nature. For example, an opt-out AMI program implemented by National Grid as a result
of this proceeding could set precedent for a similar program by another distribution company in
the future to the extent that other distribution companies are not required to implement a similar
program in their respective GMP proceedings.

18.  The Compact is also greatly concerned about National Grid’s rate design changes
involving stand-alone distributed generation projects. The Compact has helped facilitate many
distributed generation projects (directly or indirectly) and has participated in such distributed
generation proceedings as D.P.U. 11-75 where the current interconnection standards were
developed. The Compact also purchases renewable energy certificates (“RECs”), and may be
interested in purchasing output from new distributed generation projects to blend into its
competitive supply. The Compact is considering different options as to how distributed
generation may contribute to system reliability and energy efficiency goals.

19.  However, National Grid’s proposed rate design has the potential to significantly
undermine development of distributed generation in the Commonwealth and to negatively
impact existing distributed generation projects in the event that any rate design change may

apply to them. The economics of existing projects were developed with current rate design and



costs in mind. Rate design changes that may apply to existing distributed generation projects
could financially harm those projects.

20.  The Compact’s participation will also contribute to a full and fair hearing in this
proceeding in that the Compact will represent unique interests from its perspective as an energy
aggregator and energy efficiency program administrator.

21.  The Compact also can provide its unique expertise and experience as it relates to
energy efficiency and demand response matters relevant to this proceeding. The Compact and
National Grid are the only Program Administrators that have included a demand response
offering as part of their 2016-2018 Three-Year Energy Efficiency Plans. In addition, the
Compact is actively engaged in exploring the targeted delivery of energy efficiency and demand
response initiatives for the purpose of reducing demand. See Petition of NSTAR Electric
Company for an Exemption to the Zoning of the Town of Mashpee, D.P.U. 14-03, Order at 20
(April 13, 2015) (directing the Compact and NSTAR to explore geo-targeting initiatives in an
effort to delay infrastructure investment). The Compact is also analyzing geo-targeting of energy
efficiency measures, renewable energy, and energy storage as a means to delay potential
infrastructure investment to support the increasing load and system constraints on Cape Cod and
Martha’s Vineyard.

22.  The Compact’s participation in this proceeding will help facilitate an appropriate
and informed result in this proceeding. The Compact’s intervention will not unduly burden the
Department, National Grid nor any of the other parties that filed to or may intervene in this
proceeding in that the Compact will refrain from introducing duplicative or repetitive material

and will cooperate in ensuring a speedy and efficient proceeding.



23.  Based on the foregoing reasons, the Compact will be substantially and specifically
affected by the outcome of this proceeding. The Compact can best serve and protect the interests
of its members and customers through its active and full participation herein. No other party can

adequately represent the Compact in this proceeding.

IV. CONCLUSION
WHEREFORE, for the above reasons, the Compact respectfully moves that the
Department allow this petition to intervene in this proceeding.
Respectfully submitted,
THE CAPE LIGHT COMPACT

By its attorneys,

W

Rheccad Frelteo
&wm@‘aﬁﬂm

oo 4 il

Jeffrey M. Bemnstein, Esq. (jbernstein{@bck.com)
Rebecca F. Zachas, Esq. (rzachas@bck.com)

Jo Ann Bodemer, Esq. (jhodemer@bck.com)
Audrey A. Eidelman, Esq. (aeidelman@bck.com)
BCK LAW, P.C.

271 Waverley Oaks Road, Suite 203

Waltham, MA 02452

(617) 244-9500 (voice)

(802) 419-8283 (fax)

Dated: March 30, 2016



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

)
Petition of Massachusetts Electric Companyand )
Nantucket Electric Company d/b/a National Grid ) D.P.U. 15-120
For Approval of its Grid Modernization Plan )
)
NOTICE OF APPEARANCE

The undersigned attorneys hereby give notice of their appearance as counsel for the Cape
Light Compact, in the above-captioned case.,

Respectfully Submitted,

THE CAPE LIGHT COMPACT
By its Attorneys,

W

Placens Gl
pleciher

@74 Gl

Jeffrey M. Bemnstein, Esq. (jbernsteinidbck.com)
Rebecca F. Zachas, Esq. (rzachas@bck.com)
Jo Ann Bodemer, Esq. (jbodemer{@bck.com)

Audrey A. Eidelman, Esq. (acidelman@bck.com)
BCK Law, P.C.

271 Waverley Oaks Road, Suite 203
Waltham, Massachusetts 02452
Telephone: (617) 244-9500
Facsimile: (802) 419-8283

Dated: March 30, 2016



COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC UTILITIES

)
Petition of Massachusetts Electric Company and )
Nantucket Electric Company d/b/a National Grid ) D.P.U. 15-120
For Approval of its Grid Modernization Plan )
)
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I have this day served the foregoing document(s) upon Secretary
Mark D. Marini and Hearing Officers Tina Chin and Sarah Herbert via electronic mail and hand
delivery, upon the Service List via electronic mail and first class mail in this matter.

Dated this 30™ day of March, 2016.

?,QWL% %,,@D.m
Rebecca Zachas, Esq. (rzachas@bck.com)
BCK Law, P.C.
271 Waverley Oaks Road, Suite 203
Waltham, MA 02452
617 244-9500 {Phone)
802 419-8283 (Fax)




S4nNing Abiauzg 13340WS V¥V PIiDMO| 424y13b601 BUui)Ni0M

M3INIINQ UOIIDZIUIIPOIA] PI4D




(juondonpoud pue) asn A3Iaua adeuew 491159 03 SISWNSUOI Stamodwa

Jey3l plus8 paziuiapow Ua1Jews e piemol Hiys e suisned S| SyJomiau

uoljewiojui Jo asuajenald pue ‘Adualjisal pue ANjigels plu8 paseaudul
10} pasu ‘(sY3@) s224nosad ASiaua paingliisip JO uoilei3alul SUISERUIU|

S19sh pus 03 siue|d Suiessuas pazijesiuad
WOJJ :UO0I3234Ip SUO Ul Jamod JaA1ap 01 PaUSISOP SeM PLIS 214133 IND

13 9y} aziuisapow AYpA

f:%?ﬂ
=



‘(3UaAJtalul 01 Sulji} JO) SUl|pe3p € Y10 13S |JIM YdIym)
9JU3434U0) |edNpPad0id pue SulieaH alqnd ‘Sulji4 JO 92110N pUB 310N JO 3P0
ue panss| 19A J0u sey Nda dYL ‘STOT ‘6T ISNSNY UO SAINID J13Y3 pajly sOA3I YL

(YAL) S=1ed SujAieA-awi) 10} YJOoMa3Wel} pie] J13pJ0 D-10-¥T NdQ e

syuawalinbau
8ul|ly ased ssauisng 1no 3ujAe| Jpa0 D-9/-2T Pue ‘(dIND) ue|d uoI1IeZIUISPOIA
pl4D e dojaA3p 03 DA yaea Suninbal 1aplo g-9/-ZT Panssi NdA e

(.,PMD211393|3 3y}
JO UOI1BZIUI3POIA DY 03Ul UOIIO|A UMO SH UO Sall|ian 21gnd Jo Juawiliedsg

3ul}}os jeinpadoid




Juswadeuew 1asse pue adiopiom suinoiadwj
S924N0SaJ pPainglilsip suijeasdaju] °¢

S1S02 J2W01sNd
pue walsAs Sulonpad suipnjoul ‘puewap suiziwndQ 'z

S95eIN0 JO S1394J0 3uUdNpPaY ‘T

:19pJ0o g-9/-zT Ui s|eo8 Alewiid anoy Y1404 189S Nda YL

W e S9AI103[qO uollezIuI3POIAl pliD



4NV aAsiyde 03 ASojouyaa] 3y1dads e s| {(24n3onJisedju] Sulia1aN Pa2UBAPY) [NV "SUOIIDUNY JO 135 21)12adS B SI JINV 4

(uotssiwaad
,519W01sN2 Yyum) ssoueijdde pjoyasnoy Jo [0JIUOD PUB YUM UOIBIIUNWWOD) ‘f

13 Y1 puUe SI2W03SNI U33M1ad UOIEIIUNWWOD ABM-OM| ‘€
UOI1BDI}II0U UOIjeI0]Sal pue aSeino pajewoiny g
‘s}@)Jew $22IAI9S Alejjioue pue AS1aua IN-OS| Y1 Ul JUBWJ1AS
10} 9|gesn ‘@wi) jeal Jeau ul ‘ejep agesn |eAldlul SIBWOISND JO UOIIIB|I0D T

:SJUSWID| JNOJ SapN|aUl (Sullalsw Jiews) JINV

‘yoeoidde Joliadns e S| sweljaulll
193u0| e jeyl suileiisuowsp ased ssauisng e e as|2 o ‘|enoidde diND
U6 sieaA g ulyam L JIAIY aA31yde sO@3 a2yl 1eyl Juswadinbau e 31 spewl ndd

_w..__sa (4INY) Alljeuolldoung SUli219|Al pRIUBAPY

ST Jybin ade) a



Ajlje1nuapijuod uj1d9load Sjiym elep a8esn Jawolisnd uleliad 0l
Ss922e sial|ddns aAl1RdWOod MOjje pjnom 1.yl saanpadold pasodold —

SJlJ19W 92uew.o}4ad pue ainjonJiseljut pasodoid —

ueld (@ay) JuswAo|dap pue uawdojandp ‘Yrieasal y —

ue|d (O3IN) Yyoea4ino pue ‘uoiieanpa ‘Suilaylew y —

(dILS) uejd JUBWIISIAUI WUDI-30YS JBBA-BAl} Y —
:24e dpn|aul
1ShWw SH@3 Suawa|3 {AIVY 2A31Yyde pue SaA1333[go dIND INOoj ay3 39w ||Im
a3 3yl moy 3ululjano ,syusawnaop gujuue|d oidalells, JeaA-ual ale SqIND

L e SJINID JO sjuawia|g palinbay



suondo YAL
doj|aAsp 03 J9pJ0 U elep 0} ssad2e sual|ddns aAllladwod moj|e 03 sHGJ salinbay —

spouad
puewsap ysiy Sulnp puewap 3uianpas Aq (Y1d) 21eqaa awn) yead uied 01 AYjIge ylim a1ed 1ej{ .
(spousad

ddD |eu0ISe20 10} YMY/0E'0S Head-uo Yymi/zT 0s Yead-1o Yymy/L0°'0S st @314d “3:3)
uolldo JNejap e se (ddd) Buiid yead |eaijud yum dead-yo dead-ug .

SU013d0o 921AI9S JISEC OM] D40 0] $OAT Salinbay —
(D-10
-4 T Ul uoneslipow noyym pardope pue g-f0-fT Ul In0 pie|) J4omawiel)
HAL S, 3uswiiedaq ayl Yum Juslsisuod aie 1eyl sdi1S/SdIND dojansp
0] paiinbau ase sO@3 ‘suswi|d dIAD pa4inbal 19Y10 ayi 03 uonIppe uj

(YAL) serey Suihiep awij




YAL Ul paisalalulun aje S1awoisnd jsow swie|) —
YAL B 4NV 03 yoeoidde ul-1do ysnoayy yussedde 3soN —

Aduaiedsuely Supnud pue
Uollew.lojui 03 SS322. 431eals8 S1awnsuod SulAlS Jo s1auag shejdumoqg e

All|1gernas 8uinoaduwl UO $3SNJ0 —
SIUBW1SAAUI |eluawWaJdU] saziseydwy —

yoeoudde guloey-pii3 ‘DAI1RAIBSUOD)

S9131|eI2UD) :dIAID S,324N0SI3AT




DN] DNILINSNOD
ADHINT NYOITTVD)

h
p

.

1239 ‘uesijjen 4 ulnay Aq
pleog Suiuianoo —- 1oedwor) 13 ade)

9102 ‘€T |14dy

a49yM B AYM “1eym
MOIIAIIAD UY
SAIADO0UIIIA



MBIAIBAQ PUBOIOIN

dioo ABisua

\ 85019916

PO AN ey woy
/7 [papuctsy., oq uea puBosalg

e A e T P S G et A s S0 B LT i ,2PpowW pue|si
10 Pa123uu0d-pLid yiog ui a1edado 03 3 3jgeus 03 P43 ayl wod} 109UU0dSIp pue
129UUO0D [ued pue] PlIS Byl 01 323dsas YIm Allus 9{gqe|joJiuod 9|8uls e se sioe eyl
S9liepuNog |eo14109|2 paulap Al4ea|d yim (43q) sa4nosal Agisua paingliasip
pue Speo| padauuodialul JO dnoud e, se pugodiw e saquassp 304 'S YL

éplidouoiw e st leym



N

19Y1eam swaJilxa pue agueyd ajewl|d 01 9duUaljisal
92UeYUD 01 304 'S'N Ag siseydwa gy paseatsul sey sageino
PlIS pasned-Jayieam Jo Alisuaiul pue Aduanbaiy Suisealoul .
[S®24n0S JO XIW U0 Sulpuadsp ‘SHSuUSQ [BIUBWUOHAUD [elIU310d] —
"Juswadeueuwd 19s5se pue adiopdom Suinoadw) —
‘DU S224Nn0sal painguiisip 3unesdau] —
:$3S02 J3W0ISND pue walsAs Supnpad duipnjout ‘puewap Suwiziwndo —
‘S@8e1no JO $109440 3yl 3upnpay —
(638 9-9/
-¢T 'N'd’"g) s|eos Adljod pue syuawaldinbali Azoiniels Suidueape
10} sueaw 1uerrodwi se SA3 pue a3el01s A1D11103|9 ‘asuodsal
puewap ‘sadinosal ASiaua sjgqemauau ‘Aduaniys ASiaua yum
SPIIS0J2IW SapN|dUl UOIIBZIUIBPOIA PLID JO 1ed S Ndd VIAL e

¢ PlIS0JoIW B JO anjeA 3yl Sl 1By



~ pubodw
™ 19p2d4
. jensed
/r&ax:
“1apaag finy
. " PHbonIK
: uojieIsqns
; 14
ﬁco_mamEmCQbunanw M uofesqng
uojAUUO) £|ddns Ying T wopinquisig

- S S Y R aEm G A A W AR R e o o B

¢ 1] %00] piiSodiw e sa0p 1eyM



VY7 NOIS3Q0 3T8VYNIVLISNS M

(Aemuapun 109loud cou,.w_om___.u.o A11D)
$109UU0243]U| pue sa24n0osad ‘(s)peo] azAjeuy

djuawajdw] 01 aiaymn 9 AUM




paseq-pooytoqydiau/Alunwiwo) —
paseqg-sndwed 4o Alljioe4 —

saljiunjioddo jenyuayod Ajlnuapl 01 psnsind
99 uoileziwildo/3ullls |ed0| pue Alljigisea) ageinoduy .

gulid Ajlddns A31014309{3
$9|1jo4d peoj asn-pus d21ydei3099 .
S10JJD UOoIldNpaJ puewap pue Adusidijja AS1aua Y3SiH e

(103(oud A-Q) Adua1liwialul 38euew
0] 93e101s Aua11eq |eiualod Ylim S324N0Sal Ad

(QgLl) so218J SAI}ISUSS-3WI} YHM SI213W WS .

pauoiyisod [jam aq Abw pIpASUIA S,0YIIDIN 1B pO) adb)
SJ0loe) m_o_ESE — U_.\_mogu__t e JO UOI1ed07



ON} DNILINSNOD

WwodASiSusues|||es@uesi||[es)
ADHIANT NVOITIVE) .

h
“ uegi||eo 4 Uina)

UOISSNJSIJ 1) SUoISaNyD



doYSHIOM-PI-PLIB-UOIINGIIISIP-214103|3-2UdI[ISAI-p TOF -S|0I1310W-13410
-pup-110dai-|puif/sajaian/ao/nob Abiaua// diy aiqojiony “fauiiuQ] ‘1i0das Aipwwins doysyiom

@®Y pUD uonNgLIsIg 014323(3 1UdJj1say 304 vI0Z “(vT0OZ ‘dunf) ‘Abiau3 fouswipdag 's\n .
v6-v8 ‘(8)sZ ‘jpuinor

A1014323)3 Yy “annoiuf praboany s,Abiaug Jo Juawindaq SN YL (ZT0Z) ‘W YHWS @ “g ‘UoL .
'v€-92 ()T ‘autznboy Abiau3 pup 1amod 333 "Ub|d Q'9Y UD Ul SI3pjoYyayDIS

Yum suiof ABiau3 Jo Juawindaq "S'f YL (piiD Jualisay ai0N v (ST0Z) M ‘Bubp g “g ‘uof .
fpd'sT/ ZT-5131-buImS-geuo1ssas/ST0z/a1/sa3uaiafuos/pd/sajif/iinofap/sais/b10°3aadn//:d1y

faunup] "buiuupyg waisAs Abiaug uoisog fo A113 (ST0Z) piofppig ‘Buims .
0-15A5-Ab13U3-5-U0IDU-33UDADPD
-budjay-5p1iboJ2{i-3]0.1/piib-1A0Ws/iuaido]aA3p-AbojoULD3]/5a3IA135/a0/A0DABIaua//: a1y

[aunuQ] waisAs Abiaug s,uonpN a3yl acupapy o1 burdiay ui spiuboudiy fo ajoy ayj .
'yTOZ "1d3S ‘UOIBUIYSDM ‘PUDIYILY “qOT "IN ISIMYIION JHf1d0d b/ IEZ-TNNJ

,,32un0Ssau Au3ij1Sa4 0 s pUBOIDIAL, ‘NX A PUD NIT ') ‘OPUOZIIT 'Y "IN “auffni D4 43p1auyas d y
3S11130X3=21D315% 9] [ =101d; dsp'5123]oid/uipui/bi0 " s310I205SDGDDI MMM/ d11Y

[aunug] ‘sdoysyiopn pribosoy uoisog fo A1) .

suoniuljap
~pIbOI3IWI/AOD ]G] pPIADOIDTW-BUIpIng//isadny [auljuQ] ‘suonjuifaqg prbossiy qoi Asiayiag .
a|qoua

~]003-U0IDZIWNdo-pun-bujis-13p /5193010 /A0D [q] plabonIWw-bulpling//isdny [auijuo] oruiofijo)
uj ¥3a Jo wawhojdaqg aipas 36p7 ajgou3 03 j00f uonpZILUNAQ puy bulyis ¥y3ag qo7AaieNiag .

S9OUD.J3J3Y 13 $224N0S ‘SJUSWRZPI|MOUN DY



